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Financial Highlights
BFRE

(For the year ended 31 December)

(BE+=A=1+—HLFE)

Four-Year Financial Summary [MNEHHEHE
RMB'000 ARBTT 2004 2005 2006 2007

“TTWE —TTHE —TTAF —FELE

Turnover S 57,658 173,697 413,303 1,015,538
Gross profit Es 10,543 68,900 169,063 323,126
Profit from operations TR 7,988 62,842 156,025 344,673
Profit attributable to equity shareholders SRR B R (L FE 4,941 41,303 109,670 292,241
Basic earnings per share (RMB cents) FREREF (ARESD) 0.99 8.26 21.85 58.23
Non-current assets ErRFEE 17,981 109,450 134,500 277,879
Current assets ENEE 57,615 135,333 264,935 673,996
Current liabilities mEaE 27,568 75,543 129,285 289,521
Non-current liabilities EREAE 150 14,981 15,344 29,637
Net assets BEEFE 47878 154,259 254,806 632,717
Profit Attributable to
Turnover Equity Shareholders Earnings Per Share
EERE R REL RIS BREXZR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB cents
AR¥T T ARBF T AR¥ESD
1,015,538

1000000 + 300,000 +- 292,241 60 + 58.23

800,000 + 240,000 + 48

600,000 180,000 1 36 T

413,303
400,000 + 120,000 + 109,670 24 T 21.85
200,000 + 173,697 60,000 1 41303 12+ 826
57,658
! 4,941
0 || 0] — I 0] 099 I
04 05 06 07 04 05 06 07 04 05 06 07

Note: MIEE -
The results of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2004, 2005 and 2006 and the REEBHE_STNE - —_EERER_ZEEE+-A4
balance sheets items of the Group as at 31 December 2004, 2005 and 2006 are extracted =+ HIEFENEERAEBN _ZTNF - —TTHF
from the Company's prospectus dated 17 March 2008. ER-EBEERNE+-_A=1+—HHEEBEXREBR HEHMBEKX

RANZZENF=ZA+LRTBENERER -
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O SREM

The Group underwent a corporate reorganisation in June 2007 by
acquiring the WWX Group’s solar energy business arm which
engages in the production of monocrystalline solar ingot as well
as reclaiming and upgrading of polysilicon. The acquisition has
significantly improved the production capacity, enhanced the
technology level, and attracted more professional talents to the
Group.
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at 24 April 2008, after the partial exercise of over-allotment options)
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Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited

X RERERBRA T

Solargiga Energy

Wafer Works Investment Corp., a company wholly-owned by Wafer Works 1)
Corp ("WWX"), which is listed on the Gre Tai Securities Market of Taiwan

Stock Exchange. It is the world's 7th largest semiconductor grade silicon

wafer manufacturer

Space Energy Corporation, a Japanese company engaged in the 2)
manufacturing and sale of silicon related products

Wafer Works Investment Corp. /& & EEABEZEEH
D ERRA &RBERMERAR (SRR
ZEERBHNAR  REKELRYERERRE
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Year 2008 marked a new era of Solargiga’s development.

Its successful listing on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited has strengthened its capital base, enhanced
its corporate governance structure and placed it at a perfect
platform to emerge as a market leader in the solar energy
industry in the PRC and further around the globe.

BARERN—ZZEN\FRL—EHFNER  SERIRNEBEHST
%Fﬁﬁﬁﬁ’&?zﬂitm TEMRTEXRED  BRATEXRE

 THERERENREENNNVE  BHEBRADZ —IPEUE
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Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

CHIAO Ping Hai, Chairman
E¥E FFE

A rising sun with strong growth momentum
Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to present the
first set of annual results of Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited after its listing.
For the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group attained outstanding results
in further increase in productivity, enhancement of technology, strengthening
of internal management and expansion of business network in our efforts, and
is well positioned to realize opportunities in the market so as to achieve rapid
business growth and encouraging financial performance.

With growing environmental concerns over global warming as well as surging
prices of fossil fuels, the demand for green energy has escalated. Solar energy,
as a new source of energy, is the most preferred renewable energy resource
against others due to its infinity nature with wide applications. Many countries
have proactively promoted the use and development of renewable energy
and introduced incentive policies favorable to the development of solar energy
industry. As the second largest manufacturer of monocrystalline silicon ingots
in China, the Group underwent a corporate reorganisation in June 2007 by
acquiring the Wafer Works Corp. Group's solar energy arm which engages in
the production of monocrystalline solar ingot and reclaiming and upgrading of
polysilicon. Such acquisition has significantly improved the production capacity
and technology of the Group, and attracted more professional talents.

08

XERR BHZR

ENIIR
FABRREZG2A  MARZGERERERA
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Thanks to the increasing scale of operations and the favorable environment in
the market, the Group has recorded strong growth in sales of its core products,

silicon ingot and wafer, which in turn brought the overall profit to new heights.

During the year under review, turnover of the Group was RMB1,015.5 million,
which represented a substantial increase of 145.7% over 2006. Gross profit and
net profit improved by 91.1% and 166.5%, amounting to RMB323.1 million and
RMB292.2 million respectively. Basic earnings per share increased by 166.5% to
RMB58.23 cents.

The Group was successfully listed on

the Main Board of Hong Kong Stock
Exchange on 31 March 2008 and widely
supported by international investors.
Through strategic alliances with three
leading players in solar energy industry,
Wafer Works Corporation, Space Energy
Corporation and Sumitomo Corporation,
being our strategic investors, the

Group has benefited from the shared
management experience, enhanced s vy ap
technology on solar energy, strategic JL% ) ﬂﬁﬁﬁ
guidance and opportunity referrals
provided. Meanwhile, strengths of the

e el o

Group have been further enhanced to ensure adequate and stable supply of

photovoltaic ("PV") value chain of the

raw materials. As a result, the synergy effects will lead to win-win situation.

In addition, the Group has put more emphasis on corporate governance
which is a major step forward for further internationalisation. | am confident
that the leading position of the Group in the industry will be consolidated.
Looking forward, the Group would strive for global expansion while
reinforcing its market position in China, seeking to become the world’s largest
manufacturer of monocrystalline solar ingots and wafers. With the support of
the shareholders, the Group will continue to strengthen its competitiveness to
achieve remarkable results.

Chairman
CHIAO Ping Hai

Hong Kong, 24 April 2008

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited [5 Y 8ERIZRER A 7

The Group achieved impressive
growth in 2007 by actively
increasing its production
capacity and enhancing its
technical know-how. We are
well poised to capture growth
opportunities arising from
increasing usage of solar energy.
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Business Review

£ e

TAN Wenhua, Executive Director and President

BYE HITEFEFREH

Benefited from the rapid growth of the global solar energy industry, the Group
broadened its scope of business, expanded productivity, enhanced operation
efficiencies and strengthened internal management. As a result, the Group
achieved remarkable performance in 2007 with substantial growth in turnover
and net profit, which is in line with the profit estimate set out in the Prospectus
for initial public offering in March 2008.

Business Overview

The Group has secured its leading position among the manufacturers of

solar monocrystalline silicon ingots and wafers in China. The Group is China’s
second largest manufacturer of monocrystalline silicon ingots, measured in
terms of production output and sales. Besides, the Group has also been widely
recognized as a specialist in reclaiming and upgrading of polysilicon.

XEERAGREENREER  AREEREBHRDE
B mAER  RITEENG  BIEAMEEREHEG
T ERNRETSEKE  R-ETLFISEBEBNK
B EEERANGREER  BAEEE_TTN\F
= AERAABRERFIZDAELORFTDAAR -

EBHME

FEBEEFHPHBLNOAGREE REEREN EE
AR TSI - MEBRHEEEHE  AKELTEE
“AREREREER  MEAZREMNSR REKHERK
s T EZ AR

Annual Report 2007 F 3§




In addition, the Group has developed a value chain which connects global

top suppliers, manufacturers of silicon as well as an extensive sales network,
with strong and long term relationships established with a number of leading
solar energy players, such as Sharp, Sumitomo Corporation and Suntech. Some
of these leading players are both suppliers and customers of the Group. As
such, the Group secures a strong international renowned customer base, and
benefited from stable supply of raw materials at the same time. In this regard,
the Group has enjoyed the benefits arising from such close relationship, taking
the role as both customers and suppliers.

The Group integrates the advantages of high-skilled personnel and abundant
low-cost labour from Mainland China with production technology and sales
network of solar energy from Taiwan and Japan, allowing the Group to
differentiate itself from its competitors.

Market Overview and Business Strategies

The solar energy industry is entering a new era with immense potential. With
increasing natural disasters caused by global warming, there are growing
environmental concerns of cutting down carbon dioxide emission among
countries and mankind. In addition to the escalating prices, conventional
energy source generated from fossil fuels such as coal, crude oil and natural
gas are facing a number of challenges. All these facilitated the emergence of
renewable energy as alternatives. Solar energy has become a preferred choice
due to its infinity nature with wide applications and installation friendliness,
meeting the increasing needs of clean and safe energy with high efficiency
among mankind. At present, many countries have proactively promoted the
use and development of renewable energy by promulgating relevant laws and
introducing incentive policies favourable to the development of solar energy
industry. Such favourable conditions continue to support the rapid growth of
the global solar energy industry.

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited S XEERIERER QA
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Business Review 7% 6 &

According to Solarbuzz LLC's forecast in 2007, the global solar PV industry by
MW of installations and revenues from 2006 through 2011 is expected to reach
7,630 MW and US$31.5 billion respectively, rising at a CAGR of 34% and 24%
respectively. Germany, Japan and Spain are currently the major markets in the
solar photovoltaic (“PV") industry. Going forward, with the implementation of
California’s Million Solar Roofs initiative and the increasing efforts in developing
the solar PV industry in other parts of the country, the US is expected to
increase the installation capacity to 7,000MW by 2020. As one of the largest
energy consumers in the world, China continues to possess immense market
opportunities while Korea and Australia are expected to be the emerging
countries in the solar industry.

Furthermore, the Chinese government has strongly supported the
development of renewable energy by promulgating the Renewable Energy Law
of PRCin January 2006. This has accelerated the promotion of cleaner energy
technologies effectively. The Chinese government has also encouraged the

use of solar energy as a clean energy by implementing subsidy programmes
and incentive schemes. According to a white paper entitled China’s Energy
Conditions and Policies issued by the State Council of China on 26 December
2007, China will actively develop renewable energy and increase the utilization
of renewable energy with the target to reach 10% and 15% of overall energy
consumption in 2010 and 2020 respectively.

As for the Japan market, the Group has cooperated with another strategic
shareholder Sumitomo, a leading player in the solar energy industry, to expand
its business network. With Sumitomo being its distribution agent in Japan,

the Group holds a positive outlook towards its future business growth in this
market.

Major suppliers of polysilicon, the major raw material of the Group, are located
in Europe, the US and Japan. Owing to the rapid growth of the solar energy
industry, there is a serious shortage of polysilicon supply due to insufficient
output, leading to escalating prices of this type of raw materials. Going forward,
as the current polysilicon producing countries increases polysilicon output,
along with new producers in China, Japan and Korea entering the market, the
shortage is expected to be alleviated. Currently, the Group has already planned
to secure the supply of polysilicon in 2008 for its own production. To ensure
stable raw material supply in 2009 and further in the mid- to long-run, the
Group plans to invest in the upstream polysilicon sector. The strategic investor
Space Energy Corp. in Japan offers the Group stable raw material supply

1R 4% Solarbuzz LLC 2007 4F FR{ER TER] + & BRI KB RE ¢
REEREBERLRRAG » BH2006FE201FHEEH
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for processing. Another strategic investor of the Group, Wafer Works, being
the world's 7th largest semiconductor wafer manufacturer, has entered into
long-term solar grade polysilicon supply agreements with two international
acclaimed polysilicon suppliers to support the Group's rapid growth.

Therefore, leveraging on the Group's extensive sales network and solid
foundation for production as well as sound reputation within the industry, the
Group would benefit from the rapid growth in global PV industry, aiming at
becoming the world’s leading player in the solar energy industry.

Operation review

Advanced proprietary technical know-how on solar energy
integrating expertise from China, Taiwan and Japan

The Group has advanced proprietary production know-how, such as the
technologies on reclaimed silicon upgrading, crystal pulling for a mix of
reclaimed and high-purity polysilicon, design of hot zone of crystal pulling,
enhancement of slicing accuracy and yield rate, allowing the Group to occupy
a leading position in the market.

Owing to its strong R&D capability, the Group has successfully secured orders
from a number of major international customers in China, Japan and Europe.
As the Group has strengthened its silicon reclaiming ability, cost of production
has been reduced without sacrificing high quality of products. Furthermore,
strengthened reclaiming ability has secured sufficient supply of reclaimed
polysilicon in order to support the Group's anticipated strong growth in the
production of solar ingots and wafers.

Production model for high-efficiency vertical integration
Solargiga has utilized various unique techniques to upgrade defective
polysilicon which could not be used directly in technical processing, and
appropriately implemented mix-use of such reclaimed polysilicon and
high purity polysilicon for its production to deliver better quality at higher
production efficiency and lower costs.

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited [z t8ERIZRGRA T
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» Monocrystalline Solar Ingot Pulling
AGreE gzl R RiBRE

The Group's production facilities are located in Jinzhou and Shanghai. The
Jinzhou plants are equipped with integrated production and upgrading
facilities for raw materials, monocrystalline solar ingot pullers and wiresaws.
The Jinzhou plants mainly engage in the manufacturing of monocrystalline
solar ingots and wafers. Occasionally, at the request of customers, the Jinzhou
plants also provide processing services in respect of polysilicon materials.

In 2007, the annual production capacity of Jinzhou plants was 1,000 tons of
ingots and 17 million pieces of wafers with light energy conversion capability
of approximately T00MW, an increase of 25.0% and 89.0% respectively over the
previous year.

It is expected that the annual production capacity of the Group will expand to

2,000 tons of ingots and 48 million pieces of wafers in 2008. The Group's plan is
to further increase the capacity to 4,000 tons and 150 million pieces by 2009.

Sales of Products

The Group has three main businesses:

(@)  The trading and manufacturing of monocrystalline silicon ingots and
wafers;

(b)  The processing of solar ingots and wafers;

(0)  The upgrading and trading of polysilicon.

af
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The manufacturing and sale of monocrystalline solar ingots

Since its inception, the Group has engaged in the manufacturing and sale of
monocrystalline solar ingots. The Group currently produces monocrystalline
solar ingots with various choices of diameter (ranging from 5.5 inches to 8
inches).

The manufacturing and sale of monocrystalline silicon wafers

In response to customers’ request for one-stop shop services for the products,
the Group established its monocrystalline solar wafers facilities in 2006. The
Group currently produces wafers of two choices of dimensions (125 x 125 mm
and 156 x 156 mm) and a variety of thickness (from 180 pum to 220 um).

The reclaiming and upgrading of polysilicon raw materials, and processing of solar
ingots and solar wafers

The reclaiming, upgrading and recycling of polysilicon raw materials conducted
by the Group includes the sorting of scrap silicon, separation of non-silicon
material from scrap silicon and etching of scrap polysilicon with the aim to
extract polysilicon raw material that can be used for production of solar ingots.
Reclaiming, upgrading and recycling have become an increasingly important
process in the PV manufacturing value chain because of the current polysilicon
shortage. The Group has a team of skilled employees for cleaning and testing
broken wafers and other reclaimable materials.

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited [5 Y 8ERIZRER A 7
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Business Review 7% 6 &

During the year under review, revenue of the Group was primarily generated
from trading and manufacturing of monocrystalline silicon ingots and wafers,
accounting for 21.7% and 63.4% respectively of total revenue of the Group.
Revenue from processing of solar ingots and wafers accounted for 8.3% and
1.0% respectively of total revenue of the Group. Revenue from upgrading and
trading of polysilicon accounted for 1.5% and 4.1% respectively.

Research and development

Enhancement of R&D technology has been another key focus of the Group.
During the year under review, in addition to the successful expertise integration
of advanced proprietary technical know-how on solar energy from China,
Taiwan and Japan, the Group's future research and development activities will
be principally directed towards the development and implementation of more
advanced process technologies to reduce cost and achieve higher production
efficiency. In particular, the Group is committed to reduce the amount of
polysilicon required in its production of ingots and wafers, and makes its
customers to improve the PV cell conversion rate by delivering high quality
products.

During the year under review, the research and development team successfully
introduced 20 inch hot zone for the production of 156 x 156 mm wafers. 156

x 156 mm wafers were previously produced by using 18-inch hot zone on a
limited scale. Compared with 18 inch hot zone, 20 inch hot zone has a higher
production efficiency of 156 x 156 mm wafers. 156 x 156 mm wafers produced
in 20 inch hot zone were put into commercial production in 2007.

In view of the worldwide shortage of polysilicon raw material, the Group may
also commence research and development on the use of metallurgical silicon
in the production of monocrystalline solar ingots. Furthermore, with the
increase in production capacity of monocrystalline solar wafers starting from
the second quarter of 2008, the Group will explore whether the waste silicon
powder produced during the wafer manufacturing process can be reclaimed
for ingot production.
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The Group has benefited from the shared management experience, enhanced
solar energy related technology, strategic guidance and opportunity referrals
provided by these strategic investors. Meanwhile, strengths of PV value chain
of the Group have been further enhanced to ensure adequate and stable
supply of raw materials. As a result, synergy effects created will lead to win-win
situation.

Development strategy and outlook

The Group has been well-positioned to benefit from the strong growth in solar
energy industry. Looking forward, as huge opportunities are expected in the
market, with an aim to becoming the largest producer of monocrystalline solar
ingot and wafer in the world, the Group will adopt the following strategies:

1. Expand production capacity and increase market share in the monocrystalline
silicon ingot and wafer markets in the world
The Group plans to have 196 monocrystalline solar ingot pullers by the
end of 2008, which represented an increase of 96% from 100 pullers
in 2007, and will lift the annual output of silicon ingots by 2 times to
approximately 2,000 tons. In addition, number of wiresaws will be
increased from 8 to 37, which will escalate the annual output of wafers
to approximately 56 million pieces. This production profile is expected
to represent an annual light energy conversion capacity of 200MW. The
Group's plan is to further double the number of monocrystalline solar
ingot puller to 400 sets and the number of wiresaw sets to 80, increasing
the annual light energy conversion capacity to 400 MW in 2009.

2 Invest in midstream and upstream segment of the PV market
The Group will focus on the upstream segment of the PV market and
actively seek to be part of it. Meanwhile, strategic alliances or long term
relationship with downstream players would be established to further
sharpen our competitiveness, so as to expand a larger market share in
the world. In addition, R&D technology enhancement is another core
development of the Group. The Group will continue to strengthen and
upgrade its production technology, in order to maintain high quality of
monocrystalline solar ingots and wafers and increase product varieties,
including R&D in respect of larger and thinner wafers and application
of advanced magnetic technology from semiconductor ingot pulling in
solar crystal pulling. As a result, the Group will be able to deliver better
quality at higher production efficiency in lower costs.
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Maintain cost effective operations through R&D technology

In relation to R&D, the Group will constantly reinforce research
cooperation with other advanced science and technology institutes and
universities. For instance, the Group has entered into a co-operation
agreement with Dalian Polytechnic University to set up a research centre
to conduct research in solar energy related technology. By constant
research and development, capacities of ingot crystallization, wafer

slicing, reclaim and upgrade of polysilicon of the Group will be enhanced.

With our expertise in solar energy industry, professional management
team with extensive experience and clear development strategies, | am
confident rapid growth in the business of the Group will be achieved and
the best return will be brought to our shareholders and investors.

Executive Director and President
TAN Wenhua

Hong Kong, 24 April 2008
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With growing environmental concerns over global warming as
well as surging prices of fossil fuels, the demand for green energy
has escalated and many countries have proactively promoted the
use and development of renewable energy. Solar energy, as a
new source of energy, is the preferred renewable energy source
against others due to its infinity nature with wide applications.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWN DM

Corporate Reorganisation

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 7 March 2007 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Company Law, Cap.22 (Law
30f 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.

Pursuant to the Reorganisation of the Group to rationalize the Group's structure
in preparation for the initial listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange, the Company became the holding company of the Group on 7 May
2007. Details of the reorganization are set out in the Prospectus dated 17 March
2008. The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on 31
March 2008.

As the acquisition of Solar Technology Investment (Cayman) Corp. and its
subsidiaries (together, the “"Acquired Group”) was completed on 26 June 2007,
the audited consolidated income statement data of the Group only includes
the contribution of the Acquired Group for the period after the acquisition on
26 June 2007. On the other hand, the balance sheets items of the Group as at
31 December 2007 were consolidated with those of the Acquired Group.

Comparison with Prospectus

In the prospectus of the Company dated 17 March 2008, the Company
forecasted its consolidated net profit attributable to the equity holders for the
year of 2007 to be not less than RMB290.0 million. In the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2007, the consolidated net profit
attributable to the equity holders of the Company for the year of 2007 is
RMB292.2 million which slightly exceeded the forecast.
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Turnover

The Group's turnover increased year-on-year by 145.7%, from RMB413.3 million
in 2006 to RMB1,015.5 million in 2007. This increase was mainly driven by the
full operations of the facilities of Jinzhou Yangguang factory since mid 2006
and the increase in the market price of monocrystalline silicon ingots. This led
to the drastic growth of the following operations:

Trading and manufacturing
of monocrystalline silicon ingots

EREEESREE 21.7%

Processing of solar wafers
KIBREEANT 1.0%

Processing of solar ingots
AR RERESEIN T 8.3%
Upgrading of polysilicon
BRZRE 1.5%

Trading of polysilicon
ZREES 41%

Trading and

1. Strong sales of monocrystalline silicon ingots and wafers, which surged
by 121.2% from RMB390.9 million to RMB864.7 million. This is attributable
to both increases in sales volume and average selling prices. The volume
of ingot sold increased from 123,924 kg in 2006 to 150,837 kg in 2007,
while volume of wafers sold increased from 5.4 million pieces to 14.5
million pieces.

2. Increased revenue from processing service fees, which rose by 3.9 times,
from RMB22.4 million in 2006 to RMB109.6 million in 2007. The volume of
ingot processed increased from 39,432 kg to 424,920 kg while the volume
of wafer processed increased from 907,442 pieces to 1,239,896 pieces.

In terms of geographical contribution, overseas sales especially to Japan,
increased considerably by 285.2% to RMB382.6 million and accounted for 37.7%
of the Group's consolidated revenue, while the remaining were generated

from Taiwan (11.1%), Europe (6.5%), North America (7.5%), PRC (36.7%) and
others (0.5%). This indicated that the Group’s high quality products satisfied the
stringent requirements of overseas customers, especially for Japanese ones.
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Cost of sales

Cost of sales increased by RMB448.2 million, or 183.5%, from RMB244.2

million in 2006 to RMB692.4 million in 2007. The increase was in line with the
substantial increase in turnover and reflected the increase in raw material price.
As a percentage of total turnover, cost of sales increased from approximately
59.1% to 68.2%.

The increase in raw material costs was mainly due to shortage of polysilicon,
which led to (i) an increase in the price of the silicon raw materials, as well as
(i) more intensive upgrading steps taken in order to make use of lower quality
silicon in the ingot production process. Another reason for the increase was
that there was RMB18.0 million fair value adjustments on the inventories of
the Acquired Group upon the acquisition so the cost of sales of the Group
increased by RMB18.0 million upon sales of those inventories.

As a result of the acquisition of production facilities from the Acquired Group in
June 2007, and as additional monocrystalline silicon ingot and wafer production
facilities began production since 2006, there was an increase in depreciation
expenses. Staff cost also increased with the expansion of the Original Group's
production, but remained stable as a percentage of total cost of sales.
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

The gross profit of the Group increased by RMB154.0 million, or 91.1%,
from RMB169.1 million for 2006 to RMB323.1 million for 2007 because of
the substantial increase in the revenue as a result of the increased sale of
monocrystalline silicon ingots and wafers.

Gross profit margin declined from approximately 40.9% in 2006 to 31.8% for
the year ended 31 December 2007. This was mainly because of the increase

in raw material costs in 2007 and the increase in inventories by approximately
RMB18.0 million, resulting from the fair value adjustment on the acquisition

of the Acquired Group. Excluding this individually significant non-recurring
impact, the gross profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2007 would be
33.6%.

Other revenue

Other revenue mainly comprised gain on acquisition of the Acquired Group
amounting to RMB74.8 million in 2007, government grants and interest
income from bank deposits. Gain on acquisition of the Acquired Group was
the difference between fair value of net assets of the Acquired Group at the
acquisition date and the acquisition consideration.

Other net loss

Other net loss mainly comprised net foreign exchange loss amounting to
RMB8.4 million or 1.3% of foreign sales. The loss arose from the appreciation in
RMB, the reporting currency, during the time gap between the transaction date
and the settlement date, and the fact that the Group's foreign sales amount
was larger than its foreign purchases.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses comprised mainly packaging expenses,
freight charges and insurance expenses. There was an increase of 108.6%,
from RMB2.125 million for 2006 to RMB4.432 million for 2007, accounting for
less than 0.5% of the Group's total turnover. It was in line with the increase in

turnover.
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Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses comprised mainly staff costs and bonuses. As a

result of Jinzhou Yangguang commencing full operation in mid 2006 and the
recruitment of senior management to manage the expanded business after the
acquisition of the Acquired Group, staff costs and related expenses increased
accordingly. In line with the increase in turnover, it increased by 210.6% from
RMB15.2 million for 2006 to RMB47.2 million 2007 and accounted for 4.6% of
the Group's turnover.

Finance costs

The Group's finance costs increased by RMB3.7 million, or 95.6%, from RMB3.9
million for 2006 to RMB7.6 million for 2007. Finance costs represented mainly
interest on bank loans and other borrowings wholly repayable within five years
and interests on municipal government loan. The reason for the increase in
finance costs was due to increase in borrowings to finance operation expansion
and the acquisition of the Acquired Group. However, with the increase in
turnover, the percentage ratio of finance costs to total turnover reduced from
approximately 0.9% to 0.7%.

Income tax

Income tax increased by RMB16.6 million or 410.8% from RMB4.0 million for
2006 to RMB20.6 million for 2007 mainly due to increase in the profit before
taxation in 2007. The effective income tax rate increased from 2.7% for 2006 to
6.1% for 2007.

Profit before taxation and profit for the year

The Group's profit from operations increased by RMB188.6 million, or 120.9%,
from RMB156.0 million for 2006 to RMB344.7 million for 2007 as a result of the
increase in gross profit, the relatively stable and low operating expenses and
gain on acquisition of the Acquired Group. Profits from operations represented
37.8% and 33.9% of the total turnover of the Group for 2006 and 2007,
respectively.

Profit before taxation increased from RMB152.2 million for 2006 to RMB337.1
million for 2007, representing an increase of 121.6%. A substantial portion of
such increase was attributable to the gain on acquisition of the Acquired Group
and the increase in profit of Jinzhou Yangguang Energy Co., Ltd.. Profit before
taxation as a percentage of total turnover decreased from 36.8% for 2006 to
33.2% for 2007.
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Profit for the year increased by RMB168.4 million, or 113.7%, from RMB148.1
million for 2006 to RMB316.5 million for 2007. Profit for the year represented
35.8% and 31.2% of the total turnover for 2006 and 2007, respectively. This
increase in profit for the year was mainly due to the increase in profit before
taxation and the tax concession effect of Jinzhou Yangguang Energy Co,, Ltd. as
well as the gain on acquisition of the Acquired Group.
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Working capital EEES

Turnover days AR 2006 2007
N —gets

Inventories s 107 77

Trade receivables FEWE SRR 36 31

Trade payables FERTE SRR 51 24

Cash cycle BEER 92 84

. PN
Inventory analysis FEDH

The inventories of the Group comprised mainly raw materials (namely
polysilicon raw materials, crucibles and other auxiliary raw materials) and
finished goods. The increase in inventory was mainly due to the expansion in
the production capacity of the Group and the inclusion of the balance of the
Acquired Group. As a result of the shortage of polysilicon raw materials in the
solar energy industry, the Group's inventory was kept at a relatively low level in
2006. However, due to the expansion of the Group's business as well as its good
relationship with suppliers, the Group was able to increase its inventory of raw
materials in 2007. The Directors consider that the Group's optimal inventory
level should be around 3 months for polysilicon raw material and 1 month for
other auxiliary raw materials to meet the Group's production requirements.

The following table sets forth the classification of inventories as at the balance
sheet dates:
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TREJINEHEEANFEDER

2006 2007

ZETRF —EZtHF

RMB'000 RMB’000

AREF T AR¥ TR

Raw materials R 79,989 95,929
Work in progress ERMR 5513 15,170
Finished goods 2R T 42,069 26,733
127,571 137,832
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The inventory turnover days dropped from 107 days for 2006 to 77 days for
2007 owing to the acquisition of the Acquired Group which had a lower
inventory turnover days.

Trade receivable analysis
The trade receivable turnover days were 36 days and 31 days for 2006 and 2007,
respectively.

The Group has strategically chosen to co-operate with leading international
solar cell producers, measured in terms of production capacity, whose credit
periods were normally longer than other local customers. The Directors
consider that such turnover days were at low levels and were within the credit
periods of the Group granted to its customers. The Group normally allows a
credit period of 30 to 90 days to its customers.

Trade payable analysis
The trade payable turnover days were 51 days and 24 days for 2006 and 2007
respectively.

Given the established relationship, the Acquired Group, as a supplier, allowed
the Group to have a longer payment period leading to a higher trade payable
turnover days in 2006. The drop to 24 days for 2007 was due to the elimination
of trade payable to the Acquired Group as the acquisition of the Acquired
Group was completed in June 2007.

Turnover days calculation

For 2006, The inventory turnover day is calculated based on the average of the
beginning and ending balances of the inventories divided by the cost of sales
for the year, multiplied by 365 days.

For 2007, as the inventory balances as at 31 December 2007 included those

of the Acquired Group, the inventory turnover days for 2007 is calculated

based on the average balance of the unaudited proforma inventory balance

of the Enlarged Group (ie. the Group as enlarged by the Acquired Group after
completion of the acquisition of the Acquired Group on 26 June 2007) as at 31
December 2006 and the audited consolidated inventory balance of the Original
Group as at 31 December 2007 divided by the unaudited proforma cost of sales
of the Enlarged Group for 2007, which is then multiplied by 365 days.
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The above principle is also applied to the calculation of trade receivables and
payables turnover days.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group's principal sources of working capital have been the cash flow from
operating activities and bank borrowings. As at 31 December 2007, the Group
showed a current ratio of 2.33 and a net cash position. It represented a healthy
financial position for future development. The gearing ratio of the Group was
20.5% (2006: 22.7%), which was calculated based on total borrowings over the
total share capital and reserves of the Group.

Improving current ratio
The current ratio being current assets over current liabilities, increased from 2.05
as at 31 December 2006 to 2.33 as at 31 December 2007.

Net cash position

The Group was at a net cash position at 31 December 2007 with cash

and cash equivalents of RMB349.0 million and outstanding borrowings of
RMB129.9 million. Both cash and cash equivalents as well as borrowings were
denominated in RMB.

Capital Structure
Please refer to Note 27 of the Auditor’s Report.

Borrowings and bank facilities

The outstanding borrowings comprised short-term bank loans of RMB127.0
million and a long-term municipal government loan of RMB2.9 million with
effective interest rates of 6.71% and 7.44% respectively.

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had total banking facilities of RMB752.0
million and utilised banking facilities amounted to RMB127.0 million. Deposits
of RMB120,000 were pledged as security for issuance of letters of credit.
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Contingent liabilities
As at 31 December 2007, there were no material contingent liabilities.

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through sales and
purchases that are denominated in a currency other than Renminbi, the
functional currency of the operations to which they relate. The currencies giving
rise to this risk to the Group are primarily US dollars and JPY. The Directors do
not expect any significant impact from the exchange rate movement since the
Group uses foreign currencies collected from customers to settle the amount
in foreign currencies due to suppliers. In addition, the Directors ensure that the
net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling US dollars and
JPY at spot rates where necessary to address short-term imbalances.

Use of net proceeds from the Company’s initial
public offering

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 31 March 2008. The

net proceeds from the Company's issue of new shares (after deducting
underwriting commission and related expenses) amounted to approximately
HK$670.7 million, which are intended to be applied in accordance with the
proposed application set out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of
Proceeds” in the prospectus. The net proceeds have been temporailly placed in
deposits with licenced banks in Hong Kong and China.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had about 783 employees. Employee
benefit expense increased to RMB40,242,000 in 2007 from RMB14,730,000
in 2006, which represented an increase of 173.2%. The remuneration of the
existing employee is basic salary, discretionary bonus and social security
contribution.
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Future plans and strategies

Going forward, to achieve the goal of becoming the world's leading player in
the solar energy industry, the Group will further improve the quality of its solar
ingots and wafers and through the following strategies for further business
expansion:

- Expand production capacity and increase market share
in the monocrystalline silicon ingot and wafer markets
in the world
B Upon completion of the expansion plan Jinzhou Rixin, one

of the Group's manufacturing bases, the Group will have 196
monocrystalline silicon ingot pullers and 24 wiresaws by the second
quarter of 2008. This will increase the Group’s annual output of
silicon ingots to approximately 2,000 tonnes and increase the
Group's annual output of wafers to approximately 48 million pieces.
This production profile is expected to represent an annual light
energy conversion capacity of over 200 MW.

B Inaddition, the Group will form a solar wafer slicing company
in Jinzhou, Jinzhou Jingji, which upon its commercial operation,
will have an initial annual design production capacity of 8 million
pieces of wafers and will be equipped with up to 13 wiresaws with
the Group's initial investment by the end of 2008. The Group's
production capacity may be further increased to 4,000 tonnes of
ingots and 150 million pieces of wafers by the end of 2009 through
the addition of further ingot pullers and wiresaws in Jinzhou Rixin.

- Maintain technical know-how advantage to reduce

manufacturing cost as well as improve quality

B Tomaintain its competitiveness, the Group will continue to
enhance its technical know-how advantage in ingot crystallization
and wafer slicing and to keep the Group abreast of the latest
technological advancement in the industry. The Group will continue
its efforts towards the development of commercial and cost-
effective manufacturing process so as to reduce its manufacturing
cost.
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- Maintain cost effective operations through the use of
the upgraded and recycled polysilicon provided by the
Group's own facility, diversify source of raw materials
and secure additional long-term polysilicon raw material
suppliers

On research and development front, the Group deployed resources for the
development and implementation of more advanced process technologies
to reduce cost and achieve higher production efficiency. In particular, the
Group seeks to reduce the amount of polysilicon required in its production of
ingots and wafers while maintaining and improving the electricity conversion
capability of its outputs.

In view of the worldwide shortage of polysilicon raw material, the Group may
also commence research and development on the use of metallurgical silicon in
the production of ingots. Furthermore, with the increase in production capacity
of monocrystalline silicon wafers starting from the second quarter of 2008, the
Group will explore whether the waste silicon powder produced during the
wafer manufacturing process can be reclaimed for ingot production. Further,
the Group has joined force with academic institutions to further explore the
application of lower grade polysilicon in its production of ingots and wafers.
The Group also has a research and development team. The Directors believe
that the team has enabled the Group to successfully develop product and
processing technologies that meet customers’ specific needs.

During the course of 2007, the research and development team successfully
introduced 20 inch hot zone for the production of ingots, which can in turn be
used to produce 156 x 156 mm wafers. 156 x 156 mm wafers were previously
produced by using 18-inch hot zone in a limited scale. Compared with 18 inch
hot zone, 20 inch hot zone has a higher production capacity of 156 x 156 mm
wafers. Commercial production of 156 x 156 mm wafers using 20 inch hot zone
have commenced in 2007.
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERW®E

Overview

The Directors recognise the importance of incorporating elements of good
corporate governance in the management structures and internal control
procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective accountability. Despite the
fact that the Group was a private company in the year under review, the Board
of Directors (the “Board”) strived to uphold good corporate governance and
adopt sound corporate governance practices. This report outlines the principles
and the code provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices

(the "Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”),
which have been adopted by the Group.

In accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company has
established an audit committee in compliance with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in appendix 14 of the Listing Rules and
appointed a qualified accountant to oversee the financial reporting procedures
and internal controls of the Group so as to ensure compliance with the Listing
Rules. It has also established an audit committee, a nomination committee

and a remuneration committee with defined terms of reference. The terms of

reference of these board committees are available upon request.

The Group has implemented a compliance manual which covers areas such as
ongoing compliance obligations of the Company and the Directors, business
operations of the Group, financial management systems, human resources
management systems, internal control systems, quality assurance and property
management systems.

Since the listing of the shares of the Company on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 31 March 2008, all the code provisions set out in the Code were
met by the Company.

Compliance with the Model Code for Directors’
Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of

the Listing Rules as the standard for securities transactions by Directors. The
Company has made specific enquiries of all the Directors and all the Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code and its code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions
since the Company’s listing on 31 March 2008.
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The Board of Directors

The Board takes responsibility to oversee all major matters of the Company,
including the formulation and approval of overall business strategies, internal
control and risk management systems, and monitoring the performance of the
senior management. The Directors have the responsibility to act objectively in
the interests of the Company.

Currently, the Board comprises nine Directors, including three executive
Directors including Mr. TAN Wenhua, Mr. HSU You Yuan and Ms. ZHANG
Liming, two non-executive Directors including Mr. CHIAO Ping Hai and Mr.
CHONG Kin Ngai and four independent non-executive Directors. including Mr.
WONG King Kuen, Albert, Ms. FU Shuangye, Dr. LIN Wen and Mr. ZHANG Chun.
Among the nine Directors, one of the non-executive Directors, Mr. CHIAO
Ping Hai was appointed to be the Chairman of the Group. The names and
biographical details of the Directors are set in the section entitled “Directors
and Senior Management Profile” in this annual report. The Board has a strong
independent element in its composition with over half of the board members
are non-executive Directors to ensure that all decisions of the Board are made
to the in the best interest of the Group’s long-term development.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to the Board committees
including the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration
committee (the "Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(the "Nomination Committee”) (collectively, the “Board Committees”). Further
details of these committees are set out below on pages 34 to 35.

Since the Board Committees were not yet established during the year under
review, the members of these Board Committees did not hold any meeting
during the year under review.

Board Meetings

The Company will adopt the practice of holding board meetings regularly for
at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Ad-hoc meetings
will also be convened if necessary to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Group. Notice of board meeting
will be sent to all Directors at least 14 days prior to a regular board meeting.
Reasonable notices will be given to the directors for ad-hoc board meetings.
Directors may participate either in person or through electronic means of
communications.

The Company will adopt the practice to provide relevant materials to all the
Directors relating to the matters brought before the meetings. All the Directors
will be provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties, and, upon
reasonable request, the Directors will be able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company's expenses. All Directors
will have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda for Board meetings.
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Since the Company was incorporated in March 2007, during the year under
review, only one meeting was held by the Board and the attendance of year of
the Directors is set out as follows:

The attendance of individual Directors at these meetings is set out below:

Board Meetings

Name of Directors Attendance

Executive Directors

Mr. TAN Wenhua 11

Mr. HSU You Yuan 1/1

Ms. ZHANG Liming 1/1

Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHIAO Ping Hai (chairman) /1

Mr. CHONG Kin Ngai 11

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert 01
(not yet appointed at the time of meeting)

Ms. FU Shuangye 01
(not yet appointed at the time of meeting)

Dr. LIN Wen 01
(not yet appointed at the time of meeting)

Mr. ZHANG Chun 0/1

(not yet appointed at the time of meeting)

Independent non-executive Directors

All independent non-executive Directors of the Group possess a wealth of
professional and industry expertise and management experience and have
provided their professional advices to the Board. They have played a significant
role in the Board by virtue of their independent judgment and their views
carry significant weight in the Board's decision. In particular, they bring an
impartial view to bear on issues of the Company'’s strategy, performance and
control. The Board also considers that independent non-executive Directors
provide independent advice on the Company's business strategy, results and
management so that all interests of shareholders are taken into consideration,
and the interests of the Company and its shareholders are taken into account in
all business decisions.
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Appointments, Re-election and Removal of ZI -EERERES
Directors
Each of the executive Directors of the Company has entered into a service ARNBSHTESHARNAEURIEEYD  B=Z2F

P

contract with the Company for a specific term of three years commencing from  \E=ZF=+—BF#h - BH=F - EFETE © 7]
31 March 2008. Such terms are subject to re-appointment by the Company at RERBFRG FEARBEREME
an annual general meeting upon retirement.

All of the independent non-executive Directors and non-executive Directors PEERERNBIIFENTESRIERNITES - VISEH
were appointed for an initial term of three years from 1 February 2008, and BZTTN\FZA—AR AH=F ZAREBEAQAN
are subject to retirement by rotation and reelection in accordance with the EHRERARRESRIESEE - A ARA  IE
articles of association of the Company. The Company considers that all the BAIERITEERE LA ABY AL -

independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with the

Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer FRERITHAR

Under provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the Chairman and the Chief BEFRIEA2 - FERITBAH(TITRER DN A
Executive Officer (“CEQ") should be separate and should not be performed BRESY - TEAR—AES - EFGLEETER—
by the same individual. The role of the Chairman is performed by Mr. CHIAO B BEERIPTES AEEFTENEEIEM
Ping Hai. Mr. CHIAQ is a non-executive Director who is responsible for WIHBDEAEEAENEBERE - hEELEETNERA
the management of the Board but does not involved in the day-to-day #Ho RTEEREEBAHRHEENER -

management of the Group's business. He has contributed valuable input to the
Group's business direction with a wealth of industry expertise.

The Company has not appointed a chief executive officer during the period AABERREART ESEITHARY - ARFINTES
under review. The overall management of the Company was performed by RafEREERARARIREEE AAAWMTESE

executive directors and senior management of the Company. Mr. Tan Wenhua, X ZESLAE ~ FrthmtERRBRALZ L - RABEEX R
Mr. HSU You Yuan and Ms. ZHANG Liming, executive directors of the Company ~ R EBESEHTHALENLH  AAEBBELRREL
who have extensive experience in the solar energy industry and their respective ¥ RBSEREEN AE -

area of profession, spearhead the Group's overall development and business

strategies.
Board Committees EEZEE
Audit Committee EREEE

The Company established the Audit Committee pursuant to a resolution of the  A&iE5F T8 BT 8%+ T E5321 B3.23(6MRE » AAF]
Directors passed on 27 February 2008 in compliance with Rules 3.21t0323and REZEZR-_TTN\F_A T HBBRRZERRKL
appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the audit committeeare  ~ HBREE S - EREZE SN T ERELLEEAEE N
to oversee the financial reporting process and internal control procedure of the  BRERF L ABELRT - BEAEEHBKER -
Group, to review the financial information of the Group and to consider issues LEBERIINEZBMNER - BZZ B8 SHANMIEHR

relating to the external auditor. The Audit Committee consists of five non- TESER(BRENEBLFNTEZR —EHNTES
executive Directors (including the four independent non-executive Directors HEREE)  MBUFRITESTRELERERS
and Mr. CHONG Kin Ngai, a non-executive Director) and Mr. WONG Wing Kuen BEEgMER  EBEXZECCENAEREE _TTF
Albert, an independent non-executive Director, is the Chairman of the Audit TZA=+—HIEFENGREVBRE - BEAEEK
Committee. The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group's consolidated M EERAIRER -

financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007, including the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 27 February 2008 in compliance with
appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the remuneration
committee are to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's
structure for remuneration of Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on
such remuneration. The Remuneration Committee consists of five members
(including the four independent non-executive Directors and Mr. TAN Wenhua,
an executive Director) and Ms. FU Shuangye, an independent non-executive
Director, is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee pursuant to a resolution
of the Directors passed on 27 February 2008 in compliance with appendix 14
of the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the nomination committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the Company's policy and structure
for recruiting Directors and senior management and on the establishment of
a formal and transparent procedure for nomination procedures and process
and criteria adopted by the Nomination Committee to select and recommend
candidates for directorship and senior management.. The Nomination
Committee consists of five members (including the four independent non-
executive Directors and Mr. HSU You Yuan, an executive Director) and Dr.

LIN Wen, an independent non-executive Director, is the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

Financial Reporting and Internal Control

Financial Reporting

The Board, supported by the Chief Financial Officer and the Finance
Department, is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements of
the Company and the Group. In the preparation of financial statements, Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards have been adopted and the appropriate
accounting policies have been consistently used and applied. The Board aims
to present a clear and balanced assessment of the Group's performance in
the annual and interim reports to the shareholders, and make appropriate
disclosure and announcements in a timely manner.

External Auditor

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the fee paid/payable to the external
auditor of the Company in respect of audit services amounted to approximately
RMB1.2 million.
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Internal control

The Board is responsible for the internal control of the Group and for reviewing
its effectiveness. The Company conducted regular review and monitor of the
Company's internal management and operation during the year. Procedures
have been designed to ensure maintenance of proper accounting records for
the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for publication,
ensure compliance of applicable laws, rules and regulations.

In order to fulfill their fiduciary duties and duties of skill, care and diligence,

the Directors will constantly seek advice and assistance from the Company’s
internal legal team and if in further doubt, seek advice from external legal
advisors in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Company also adopted internal control
procedures relating to, among others, signing authority and procedures since
February 2007. The Company has an audit and legal department consisting 3
members, one of whom was formerly a registered PRC lawyer with extensive
experience in the legal field. The main duties of the audit and legal department
are:

providing legal advice in reaching major business decisions
reviewing and drafting legal documents
handling legal disputes
advising on legal issued related to daily operations
conducting internal training for compliance issues
Directors’ responsibility on the financial
statements
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2007, which were prepared in
accordance with applicable accounting standards.
The reporting responsibility of the external auditor of the Company on the

consolidated financial statements of the Group are set out in the independent
auditor's report on pages 66 to 67.

Going concern
There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that cast
significant doubt upon the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

ESNSHEEAESTE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. TAN Wenhua (FB X #), aged 51, the President and General Manager of
the Jinzhou Plants. He was one of the founders of the Jinzhou Plants. Mr. TAN
completed an economic management undergraduate course in the Central
Party College and an electrical engineering undergraduate course with the
BEEERETRAKE (Liaoning Broadcasting and TV University*). He is also a
visiting professor of 38 2 T % K £ (Liaoning Industrial University*). Prior to
founding the Jinzhou Plants, he was the Chairman of $& /1|3 3 /3 5L 3 3
(E£E)BREE2R T (inzhou Xinhua Quartz Glass (Group) Co., Ltd.*) and
the President and the Vice President of Jinzhou 155 Factory, a state-owned
factory engaging in quartz crucibles manufacturing. When Mr. TAN was the
chairman of Xinhua Quartz Glass, he was responsible for the establishment and
operations of Jinzhou Xinri and Jinzhou Huachang. Prior to the establishment
of Jinzhou Xinri and Jinzhou Huachang, Xinhua Quartz Glass mainly engaged
in the manufacturing and sale of quartz glass and crucible. He has been
granted a special subsidy by the State Council since 2004 for his contribution
in engineering technology. He was elected a delegate of the National People’s
Congress of the People’s Republic of China in 2007.

Mr. HSU You Yuan (5F#34), aged 53, the Chief Executive Officer of Solar
Technology Investment (Cayman) Corp. (“Solartech”) and a director of Jinzhou
Youhau. He joined the Group on 6 February 2007 and was appointed an
executive Director on the same date. He graduated with a master degree in
Business Administration from the Chinese Culture University in 1980. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. HSU was the President of WWX from February 1998 to
June 2003, a manufacturer of silicon wafer for the semiconductor industry,
which is listed on the Gre-Tai Securities Market in Taiwan since May 2002 and
later became the Vice-Chairman of the board of WWX in June 2003. He was
the managing director of Silicon Technology Investment (Cayman) Corp.

and was appointed the Chief Executive Officer of Solartech, responsible for
overseeing, amongst others, WWX’s investment in the solar energy industry. In
March 2006, he was appointed a director and he was subsequently appointed
as the Chairman of the board of Jinzhou Youhau in September 2006. Mr.
HSU's previous work credentials also include acting as Vice-President of Mosel
Electronics Taiwan Inc, a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange and
as a member of the board of directors and Executive Vice-President of Mosel
Vitelic (Hong Kong) Limited, a subsidiary of Mosel Vitelic Inc. Mr. HSU had also
made contributions to non-commercial sectors in the past. He served as a
researcher, a deputy director, and the director of Business Department of the
Executive Yuan Development Fund. He was also a lecturer of Statistics and
Managerial Mathematics for the Business Administration department at the
Chinese Culture University.

* English translation of Chinese official name is for identification purpose only
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. ZHANG Liming (5= EERR), aged 50, the Director of Administration (17X 42 E5)
of the Jinzhou Plants. She joined the Original Group (ie. the Group prior to the
acquisition of the Acquired Group) on 1 April 2003 responsible for overseeing,
amongst others, the administration of the Original Group. She is also the
chairman of the labour union of the Jinzhou Plants. She graduated from A #£rn
RERAEE R X (Central Party School in Economic Management*) in 1996.
Prior to joining the Group, she was appointed as the head of the supply division
of $8)N A I T2 (Jinzhou Quartz Glass Instrument Factory*), the
director of management of $8/ B & B M FH & B BR F £ A A (Jinzhou
Crystalline Material Co., Ltd.*) during 1993 to 1994 and the general manager

of $8NZERR/K R TEF AR A 7 (Jinzhou Huaming Crystal Art & Craft Co,
Limited®) during 1994 to 2003.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHIAO Ping Hai (5 #), aged 57, the Chairman of the Board. He was
appointed a non-executive Director in July 2007. He graduated from the
Chung Yuen University with a bachelor degree in Chemical Engineering and
master degree in Chemistry from the University of California, San Jose in 1973
and 1978, respectively. He is the Chairman and General Manager of WWX, a
company listed on the Gre-Tai Securities Market in Taiwan, the President of
Helitek Company Ltd., a subsidiary of WWX, and the Chairman of Shanghai
Jingji, a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Chiao is also a director of ACME
Electronics Corp., which is also listed on the Gre-Tai Securities Market in Taiwan.

Mr. CHONG Kin Ngai (§£E25%), aged 56, a non-executive Director. He joined the
Group in June 2002 when Prosperity Lamps & Components ("PLC") became a
joint venture partner of Jinzhou Huachang. He was appointed a non-executive
Director in July 2007. Mr. CHONG obtained his bachelor of Arts degree from the
University of Hong Kong and obtained his Master of Business Administration
degree from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is the Chairman of board
of director of PLC, Vice Chairman of the board of director of Foshan Electrical
and Lighting Company Limited, a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
and Vice Chairman of Jinzhou Youxin. He has been engaging in the production
and trading of electro-optical products for more than 30 years.

* English translation of Chinese official name is for identification purpose only
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wing Kuen Albert (£ 5k #), aged 56, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 12 January 2008. Mr. Wong is a fellow
member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong,
Securities & Investment Institute, Hong Kong Institute of Directors, Chartered
Management Institute, UK, Association of International Accountants, Society of
Registered Financial Planners, Hong Kong, as well as a member of Hong Kong
Securities Institute, The Chartered Institute of Arbitrators, Macau Society of
Certified Practising Accountants, The Institute of Certified Public Accountants
in Ireland, UK and an associate member of The Chartered Institute of Bankers

in Scotland, UK. Mr. WONG had also been a director and Chief Executive Officer
of Minghua Group International Holdings Limited, a listed public company

in the United States, until 30 September 2004. According to the filings made
available to public through the EDGAR database in U.S,, for the quarterly period
ended 30 September 2005, Minghua Group International Holdings Limited was
“a small business issuer” and “a development stage company”. Mr. WONG has
been the Managing Director of Charise Financial Consultants Limited, a private
professional consulting firm in Hong Kong and an independent non-executive
director of APAC Resources Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, since July 2004.

Ms. FU Shuangye (8 &
non-executive Director on 12 January 2008. Ms. FU graduated from Wuhan

), aged 39. Ms. FU was appointed an independent

University with a bachelor degree in English Literature in 1990 and obtained
her further legal studies certificate in the Law School of China Politics and Law
University in 1997. She was qualified as a PRC lawyer in 1998. She was a partner
of Zhong Lun W&D Law Firm in Beijing. Ms. FU is now the Managing Partner

of Zhong Hao Attorneys-at-Law. She is also a member of the Foreign Direct
Investment Expertise Committee of the Beijing Judiciary Bureau.

Dr. LIN Wen (#£32), aged 68, an independent non-executive Director, joined
the Group on 12 January 2008. Dr. LIN received his bachelor degree in

Science, master degree in Science and Ph.D. degrees in Metallurgy, Chemical
Engineering and Materials Science & Engineering, respectively. He joined

AT&T Bell Laboratories (subsequently, Lucent Bell Labs/Agere) in 1975. He is
the author of many articles published by internationally recognised science
magazines. Together with other collaborators, Mr. LIN wrote about the
properties of uniform oxygen Czochralaski silicon crystals in an article and such
article was published in the Vol. 51(10), October 1980 edition of J. Appl. Phys,,

a publication of the American Institute of Physics. Czochralaski process is the
very process employed by the Group in the manufacturing of monocrystalline
silicon ingots. He has also authored/co-authored technical papers, book
chapters and owns several patents. Dr. LIN was a recipient of the 1983 Bell
Laboratories Distinguished Technical Staff Award. He is a member of Phi Tau Phi
Honor Societies. Since 1999, he has been a member of the Starting Materials
Team of ITRS (International Technology Roadmap of Semiconductor). As a life
member of the Chinese Institute of Engineers-USA, he has served the Institute
in various capacities in the last two decades. He served as its president in 1987
and National Council Chairman in 1995. Dr. LIN also served as Chairman of METS
(Modern Engineering and Technology Seminars), as well as Vice Chairman and
Chairman of Sino-American Technology and Engineering Conference.

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited [5 Y 8ERIZRER A 7
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. ZHANG Chun (5R%5), aged 75, an independent non-executive Director,
joined the Group on 12 January 2008. Mr. ZHANG graduated from Tianjin
University in 1955 and conducted research in silicon in the early years of his
career in various institutions including 1t 5/ & & B i 55 48B3 (Beijing Non-
Ferrous Metal Research Institution*). During 1979 to 1992, he was in charge of a
semiconductor material research centre of Beijing Non-Ferrous Metal Research
Institution. From 1992 to 1998, he had been the person in charge of the Bl 5 ¥
EREM R T2 25 H 0 (State Semi-conductor Material Engineering Research
Centre*) and he also acted as the general manager of &2 ¥ 8425 Kl AR

A A (Jinxin Semi-conductor Material Company Limited*). Mr. ZHANG was
awarded as a &4 # T {E#& (National Pioneer®) by the State Council in 1995.
He was awarded First Class Prizes by & B T 3422 a](FF B A & China Non-
Ferrous Industry Corp*) in 1991 and 1997 for his contributions towards research
on (a) 3 inches to 4 inches monocrystalline silicon for use in integrated circuit;
and (b) the manufacturing of 125mm monocrystalline silicon wafers for use in
integrated circuit. He was also granted special subsidy from the State Council
since 1992.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHUANG Jen Wen (#£1=X), aged 58, the Chairman of the Shanghai Plant.
He oversaw the establishment of Shanghai Jingji in 1998. He obtained his
bachelor degree in Chemical Engineering from Chung Yuan University. Prior to
joining Shanghai Jingji, he was the general manager of /&4 gaiEM A R
/x|l (Wafer Works (Shanghai) Corp.¥), then an affiliate of WWX. He joined the
Group on 28 June 2007 upon the Original Group's acquisition of the Acquisition
Group.

Mr. SAITO Noboru, aged 57, the Chief Technical Officer of the Group. He joined
Shanghai Jingji in January 2007. He graduated with a bachelor degree in
Metallic Materials and Engineering from Suzuka National College of Technology.
Prior to joining Shanghai Jingji, he was appointed the General Manager of
Manufacturing Department of Sumco Solar Corporation. He joined the Group
on 28 June 2007 upon the Original Group's acquisition of the Acquired Group.

Mr. TONG Wan Sze (52 H7)(CPA, FCCA, MBA), aged 40, is the Chief Financial
Officer of the Group, Qualified Accountant and Company Secretary, and he
joined the Company on 16 April 2007. Mr. TONG has over 16 years’ experience
in overseeing corporate finance, merger and acquisition activities, accounting,
investor relations and company secretarial matters. Prior to joining the
Company, he was the Financial Controller and Company Secretary of China
Paradise Electronics Retail Limited, which was listed in Hong Kong. Previously,
he was an auditor with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. He is a Fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an Associate of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He obtained a Master of Business
Administration from the University of Strathclyde, the United Kingdom.

* English translation of Chinese official name is for identification purpose only
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Ms. ZHAO Xiuzhen (#§55%), aged 53, the Director of Production (4 & 44 B5)

of the Jinzhou Plants. She joined the Group on 31 January 2005. She graduated
from SN ER E I TEEIE & (Jinzhou Communist Party School in
Administration and Management for Party Affairs*). Prior to joining the Group,
she was the deputy general manager of Jinzhou Hualian Shopping Centre.

Mr. WANG Chun Wei (E#&1&), aged 36, the Chief Financial Officer of the
Jinzhou Plants. He joined the Group on 1 January 2007. He obtained a Master
of Business Administration from the State University of New Jersey (Rutgers). He
is a certified public accountant in Maryland, the United States. Prior to joining
the Group, he was a Special Assistant to President & Deputy Spokesman of The
Office of General Manager of WWX, the Spokesman and Chief Financial Officer
of Panram International Corp., a company listed on the Gre-Tai Securities Market
in Taiwan.

Mr. ZHANG Yaowen (5% $2 X), aged 43, the Director of Marketing (& 548 E5)

of the Jinzhou Plants. He joined the Group on 16 May 2003. He graduated from
SR N B LR B 38 AR} (Jinzhou Communist Party School in Economic and
Management*). Prior to joining the Group, he worked in the supply division of
Jinzhou Xinhua Quartz Glass (Group) Co,, Limited as a deputy division head and
then the division head.

Dr. CHEN Wei (R E¥), aged 37, the Special Assistant to the President of

the Jinzhou Plants. She joined the Group on 1 July 2006. She obtained her
doctorate degree of Philosophy in Management at Wuhan University of
Technology in 2005. Prior to joining the Group, she was the vice president of
LTINS E ISR E A 7 (Xi'an International Trade Promotion Co. Ltd.¥)
and the vice president of B 7o i 4 5% #5110 A &) (International Transport
Division of Shaanxi Machinery & Equipment Import & Export Corp.*).

Mr. CHEN Limin (FBR3Z &), aged 40, the Deputy Technical Director of Jinzhou
Plants. He joined the Group on 30 December 2000. He graduated from the
Ore Mining Faculty of the PO [ ZE#4 £28% (Sichuan College of Construction
Materials*). Prior to joining the Group, he worked for #3E A Z I () HF
PR A &) (Xinhua Shixi Glass (Group) Co,, Ltd.*).

Ms. LI Xuexin (ZFE2%T), aged 54, the Division Head of Audit and Legal Affairs (&
£HEFEB ) of the Jinzhou Plants. She joined the Group on 5 March 2007. She
BEEELZERMSG

I8 K 2 KE} (Liaoning Party School in Financial Management*). PrlortOJommg
the Group, she was the Vice General Manager of $8/1| B HE B AR EFE A 7

(Jinzhou Shengda Tanjiu Co,, Ltd*) and the Vice General Manager of $8N 4

BHTE 482 F] (Jinzhou City Metal Materials Co,, Ltd.¥).

graduated from the Faculty of Financial Management, of &

* English translation of Chinese official name is for identification purpose only
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr. MAO Jui Yuan (FEFmR), aged 36, the Chief Financial Officer of the Shanghai
Plants. He joined Shanghai Jingji on 1 January 2007. He obtained a bachelor
degree in Accounting from Fu Jen Catholic University and was qualified as a
Certified Public Accountant (Taiwan) in 1995. Prior to joining Shanghai Jingji, he
was a principal of Emnst & Young based in Taiwan and a manager of the finance
department of WWX. He joined the Group on 28 June 2007 upon the Original
Group's acquisition of the Acquired Group.

Mr. LIU Shih Wan (855%), aged 48, the Special Assistant to the General
Manager of the Shanghai Plant and the Assistant Vice President of the Greater
China Region (KR 2 [& 3£ 75173 38). He joined Shanghai Jingji on 1 January
2003. He obtained a bachelor Degree in Civil Engineering from Chung Yuan
University in 1988. Prior to joining the Group, he was appointed the Chief
Executive Officer of TaoYuan Real Estate Investment Consortia. He joined the
Group on 28 June 2007 upon the Original Group's acquisition of the Acquired
Group.

CONSULTANT

Dr. Stephen Sun Hai CHIAO (F2478), aged 59. He was appointed a consultant
of the Company on 12 January 2008. Dr. CHIAO has been a director of Shanghai
Jingji since 1998. Dr. CHIAO received his bachelor degree in Science from

the National Cheng-Kung University, master degree in Science from the
University of Southern California, and Ph.D. degree from Stanford University.

Dr. CHIAO is a Professor in the Department of Electrical Engineering at San

Jose State University. In 2002, Dr. CHIAO was appointed as the Honorary and
Guest Professor at The University of Shanghai for Science and Technology and
China Institute of Metrology. Dr. CHIAO has published and presented technical
articles internationally, held several U.S. patents in semiconductors and
microelectronics related technologies. Dr. CHIAO's recent publication includes
"Alternative Energy Saving Devices/System”, a book with three chapters on
solar cell technologies, applications and trend. Dr. CHIAO is the elder brother of
Mr. CHIAO Ping Hai.
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Report of the Directors
EEERESE

The Directors have pleasure in submitting the annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2007.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
under the Companies Law as an exempted company with limited liability on 7
March 2007. The registered office of the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Company
has established a principal place of business in Hong Kong at Rooms 4001-06,
Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Hong Kong, and was registered
with the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong as an oversea company under
Part X| of the Companies Ordinance on 25 July 2007. Mr. Hsu You Yuan and Mr.
Tong Wan Sze have been appointed as the authorised representatives of the
Company for the acceptance of service of process and notices on behalf of the
Company in Hong Kong.

As the Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands, the operation of the
Company is subject to the Companies Law and to its constitution comprising a
memorandum of association and the articles of association.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company of the Group. The
principal activities of the Group are the trading of, manufacturing of and
provision of processing services for polysilicon and solar silicon monocrystalline
ingots/wafers.
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Report of the Directors EE&HEE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's top five customers are mainly solar wafer or cell manufacturers or
traders, except for two of them that also engage in the semiconductor industry.
In aggregate, the largest and top five customers did not exceed 28% and 59%
of the Group's total sales in 2007 respectively.

The Group currently procures raw materials from about 30 suppliers. In
aggregate, purchases from its largest and five largest suppliers did not exceed
13% and 46% of the Group's total purchases in 2007 respectively.

Save for Space Energy Corporation and Wafer Works Corp., at no time during
the year have the Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the Company
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had any interest in these major suppliers and/or customers.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries which principally affect the results as
at 31 December 2007 are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profits of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2007 and the
Company’s and the Group's financial positions as at the same date are set out
in the financial statements on pages 68 to 136.

The directors of the Company have recommended the payment of a final dividend
of RMB5.2 cents (HK 5.8 cents) per share to the shareholders on the register of
member on 21 May 2008, amounting to approximately RMB87.9 miillion.

RESERVES

Profits attributable to shareholders, before dividend, of RMB316 million (2006:
RMB148 million) have been transferred to reserves. Other movements in
reserves are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 71.

As at 31 December 2007, distributable reserves of the Company amounted to
approximately RMB367,562,000, of which about RMB87,920,000 was proposed
to be the final dividend of the year.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to RMB1.1 million
(2006: RMB40,000).

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2007 are set out in note 21 to the financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of acquisitions and other movements in property, plant and equipment
are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 27(c) to the financial statements.

FOUR-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last four financial years is set out on page 4 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. TAN Wenhua (appointed on 7 March 2007)
Mr. HSU You Yuan (appointed on 4 July 2007)
Ms. ZHANG Liming (appointed on 4 July 2007)

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. CHIAO Ping Hai (appointed on 4 July 2007)
Mr. CHONG Kin Ngai (appointed on 4 July 2007)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert (appointed on 12 January 2008)
Ms. FU Shuangyev (appointed on 12 January 2008)

Dr. LIN Wen (appointed on 12 January 2008)

Mr. ZHANG Chun (appointed on 12 January 2008)

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association, all
directors will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting. All the directors,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of 3 years commencing from 31 March 2008 (the “Listing
Date”), which may be terminated by not less than 3 months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other.

The non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive Directors
have entered into service contracts with the Company for a term of 3 years
commencing from 1 February 2008.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors being proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service agreement
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Report of the Directors EE&HEE

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into a number of agreements with parties which are
regarded as a connected person to the Group under the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“the Listing Rules”) to regulate
the relevant transactions which are non-exempt continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules. More details about the agreements and
the transactions are set out below.

A. Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from
Independent Shareholders’ Approval Requirements
The following transactions constitute continuing connected transactions
for the Company under Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules and would be
exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval requirement but
are subject to the reporting and announcement requirements set out in
Rules 14A45 to 14A47 of the Listing Rules:

Provision of water and heat services by #5248 ) B FE B IR 2\ &)
(Jinzhou Huarong Property Management Company Limited’) (“Jinzhou
Huarong”)

On 12 January 2008, Jinzhou Huarong entered into a framework service
agreement (the “Service Agreement”) with the Company pursuant to
which Jinzhou Huarong has agreed to provide water and heat (the
“Services”) to the Company and its subsidiaries designated by it from
time to time. The agreement commenced on 31 March 2008 (the “Listing
Date") and will expire on 31 December 2009.

The Service Agreement was entered in the ordinary and usual course of
business and on normal commercial terms. The fees to be charged by
Jinzhou Huarong in relation to the Services were determined comparable
to the prevailing market prices in local markets in the PRC based on the
actual consumption of the water and heat supplied to the Enlarged
Group.

For year ended 31 December 2007, the aggregate fees paid by the

Group to Jinzhou Huarong in relation to the Services amounted to
approximately RMB1,177,000.

* English translation of Chinese official name is for identification purpose only
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NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

A.

*

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from
Independent Shareholders’ Approval Requirements
(Continued)

Provision of water and heat services by #5/MZE L5 # EFE B IR

(Jinzhou Huarong Property Management Company Limited*) ( ”szhou
Huarong”) (Continued)

Based on an estimate of the Group's expected consumption of water and
heat in the two years ending 31 December 2009, it is expected that the
following annual cap amounts payable by the Group under the Service
Agreement will not exceed:

(@) RMB2,941,000 for the year ending 31 December 2008; and

(b)  RMB3,975,000 for the year ending 31 December 2009.

The above proposed caps are determined with reference to the Group’s
expected increase in production and the increase in the expected
consumption of water and heat in the production process resulting
therefrom.

Jinzhou Huarong is owned as to 90% by Huaxin Silicon, a sole
proprietorship established in the PRC and wholly-owned by Mr. TAN
Wenhua (“Mr. TAN") who is an executive Director, and as to 10% by

an Independent Third Party. Jinzhou Huarong is an associate of Mr.

TAN and hence a connected person of the Company. Consequently,

the transactions under the Service Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Company under Rule 14A.34 of the Listing
Rules and are exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement but are subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements set out in Rules 14A.45 to 14A.47 of the Listing Rules.

English translation of Chinese official name is for identification purpose only
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NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

B.

48

Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

The following transactions (the “Non-Exempt Transactions”) constituted
non-exempt continuing connected transaction for the Company and are
thus subject to reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Rules 14A.45 to 14A .48 of the Listing Rules:

Supply of graphite materials by £#8/l S 2% 2 #/ 45 B R 2~ 7] (Jinzhou
Changhua Carbon Products Company Limited) (“Jinzhou Changhua”) and
supply of quartz crucibles by #1158 & F ¥ # B IR 2 &] (Jinzhou youxin
Electronic Materials Co., Ltd.) (Jinzhou Youxin”)

On 12 January 2008, the Company entered into a framework supply
agreement with Jinzhou Changhua and Jinzhou Youxin (the “Supply
Agreement”) pursuant to which Jinzhou Changhua and Jinzhou

Youxin have agreed to supply graphite materials and quartz crucibles
respectively to the Company or its subsidiaries as requested by them from
time to time. Such graphite materials and quartz crucibles serve as the
Group's raw materials for its production of ingots. The Supply Agreement
has become effective on the Listing Date and will expire on 31 December
2009. Formal purchase agreements (by way of purchase orders and
confirmations) will be entered into between the Company, Jinzhou
Changhua and Jinzhou Youxin (as the case may be) with the detailed
terms and conditions as specified in the relevant purchase orders. The
purchase arrangement under the Supply Agreement will be conducted
on normal commercial terms and will be on terms no less favourable than
those available from Independent Third Parties.

The Supply Agreement was entered in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group and on normal commercial terms. The purchase
price payable by the Enlarged Group to Jinzhou Changhua and Jinzhou
Youxin (as the case may be) under the Supply Agreement will be
estimated based on the expected purchase amount of the graphite
materials and quartz crucibles and is comparable to the prevailing market
prices.

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the aggregate amount of the
purchase price paid by the Group to Jinzhou Changhua in relation to
the sale and purchase of graphite materials amounted to approximately
RMB16,873,000.
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NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

B.

Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
(Continued)

Supply of graphite materials by 5/ S ZE i 2% %19 B R 22 & (Jinzhou
Changhua Carbon Products Company Limited) ("Jinzhou Changhua”) and
supply of quartz crucibles by #5 /1 1t; % & F 1 #1B IR 2 &] (Jinzhou youxin
Electronic Materials Co., Ltd.) (Jinzhou Youxin”) (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the aggregate amount of the
purchase price paid by the Group to Jinzhou Youxin for the purchase of
quartz crucibles amounted to approximately RMB29,504,000.

Based on the Directors’ estimate of the purchase of graphite materials
and quartz crucibles in the coming two years, it is expected that the
following annual cap amounts payable by the Group for transactions
under the Supply Agreement will not exceed:

(@)  RMB185,177,000 for the year ending 31 December 2008; and

(b)  RMB246,450,000 for the year ending 31 December 2009.

The above proposed caps are determined with reference to (a) the
Group's expected increase in production (with the Group's ingot
production facilities increased from 100 ingot pullers at present to

196 and that for wafer wiresaws increased from 8 to 24 in the first half
of 2008) and thus the increase in demand for graphite materials and
quartz crucibles for the production requirements of the Group resulting
therefrom; and (b) the expected increase in the unit cost of graphite
materials and quartz crucibles resulting from the increase in the size of
the quartz crucible from 18 inches to 20 inches in diameter where a large
portion of such modification work for the Group's ingots facilities will
be implemented in 2008 with the remaining to be carried out in 2009.
The increase in size of the quartz crucible from 18 inches to 20 inches in
diameter for the Group's ingot production facilities allow the Group to
produce better quality of ingots as well as with longer length for each
ingot produced from the ingots puller.
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NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

B.

50

Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
(Continued)

Supply of graphite materials by #8515 2 ik 2% #1lda B R 2 & (Jinzhou
Changhua Carbon Products Company Limited) (“Jinzhou Changhua”) and
supply of quartz crucibles by #5/l/1t % & F#1#4B IR 2 F] (inzhou youxin
Electronic Materials Co., Ltd.) (“Jinzhou Youxin”) (Continued)

Jinzhou Changhua, which was established in 2006, is owned as to 40% by
Huaxin Silicon, which is owned by Mr. TAN, and as to 60% by Prosperity
Lamps & Components Limited ("PLC") is owned as to 65% by Mr. CHONG
Kin Ngai's wholly-owned companies. Mr. CHONG Kin Ngai is a non-
executive Director. Jinzhou Changhua is therefore an associate of each
of Mr. TAN and Mr. CHONG Kin Ngai and hence a connected person of
the Company. Jinzhou Youxin was owned as to 70% by $8/ T &ZEE
FIEHEZED (Jinzhou Xinxin Electronic Trading Department’) (“Jinzhou
Xinxin"), a wholly-owned company of Ms. ZHAO Xiu Qin, the spouse of
Mr. TAN, and as to 30% by PLC from the date of incorporation of Jinzhou
Youxin to 28 May 2007. On 28 May 2007, Jinzhou Xinxin transferred 70%
interest in Jinzhou Youxin to an independent third party. Jinzhou Youxin
has been owned as to 30% by PLC, which is in turn owned as to 65% by
Mr. CHONG Kin Ngai's wholly-owned companies, and as to 70% by an
independent third party. Jinzhou Youxin is therefore also an associate of
Mr. CHONG Kin Ngai and hence a connected person of the Company.
Consequently, the transactions under the Supply Agreement constitute
non-exempt continuing connected transactions for the Company under
Rule 14A.35 of the Listing Rules.

Supply of scrap polysilicon, scrap ingots and scrap wafers by Wafer Works
Corp. ("WWX")

On 12 January 2008, the Company entered into a framework supply
agreement with WWX (the "WWX Supply Agreement”) pursuant to which
WWX agreed to supply, and/or procure its subsidiaries ("WWX Group”)

to supply scrap polysilicon raw material, scrap ingots and scrap wafers to
the Company or its subsidiaries as requested by them from time to time.
Such scrap polysilicon, scrap ingots and scrap wafers serve as the Group's
raw materials for its production of wafers. The term of the WWX Supply
Agreement has become effective on the Listing Date and expire on 31
December 2009. Formal purchase agreements (by way of purchase orders
and confirmations) will be entered into between the Company (and/or
its subsidiaries) and WWX (and/or its subsidiaries) with the detailed terms
and conditions as specified in the relevant purchase orders. The purchase
arrangement under the WWX Supply Agreement is conducted on normal
commercial terms and is on terms no less favourable than those available
from independent third parties.

The WWX Supply Agreement was entered in the ordinary and usual
course of business and on normal commercial terms. The purchase price
payable by the Group to WWX under the WWX Supply Agreement will
be estimated based on the expected purchase amount of the scrap
polysilicon, scrap ingots and scrap wafers and is comparable to the
prevailing market prices in the scrap polysilicon, scrap ingots and scrap
wafers market in the PRC.

English translation of Chinese official name is for identification purpose only
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NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

B.

Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
(Continued)

Supply of scrap polysilicon, scrap ingots and scrap wafers by WWX (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2007, the aggregate amount of the
purchase price paid by the Group to WWX Group in relation to the supply
of scrap polysilicon raw material, scrap ingots and scrap wafers amounted
to approximately RMB36,027,000.

Based on the Directors’ estimate of the purchase of scrap polysilicon,
scrap ingots and scrap wafers in the coming two years, it is expected that
the following annual cap amounts payable by the Group for transactions
under the WWX Supply Agreement will not exceed:

(@) RMB87,024,000 for the year ending 31 December 2008; and

(b)  RMB102,728,000 for the year ending 31 December 2009.

The above proposed caps are determined with reference to the Group’s
expected increase in production (with the Group's ingot production
facilities to increase from 100 ingot pullers at present to 196 and that

for wafer wiresaws expected to increase from 8 to 24 in the first half of
2008) and thus the increase in demand for scrap polysilicon, scrap ingots
and scrap wafers for the production requirements of the Enlarged Group
resulting therefrom. These caps are also determined after discussion
between the Group and WWX in terms of its expected production of
scrap polysilicon, scrap ingots and scrap wafers generated through its
semi-conductor manufacturing process.

WWX holds 100% interests in Wafer Works Investment Corp. ("WWIC").
WWIC is a substantial shareholder of the Company. Each of WWX and its
subsidiaries is therefore an associate of WWIC and hence a connected
person of the Company. Consequently, the transactions under the WWX
Supply Agreement constituted non-exempt continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Rule 14A.35 of the Listing Rules.

Sale of upgraded and processed polysilicon, solar ingots and solar wafers to
Wwx

On 12 January 2008, the Company entered into a framework sale
agreement with WWX (the "WWX Sale Agreement”) pursuant to which
the Company has agreed to sell, or procure its subsidiaries to sell
upgraded and processed polysilicon, solar ingots and solar wafers to
WWX and/or its subsidiaries. The WWX Sale Agreement has become
effective on the Listing Date and expire on 31 December 2009. Formal
sale agreements (by way of purchase orders and confirmations) will be
entered into between the Company (and/or its subsidiaries) and WWX
and/or its subsidiaries with the detailed terms and conditions as specified
in the relevant purchase orders. The sale arrangement under the WWX
Sale Agreement is conducted on normal commercial terms and on terms
no less favourable than those available from independent third parties.
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NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

B.
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Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
(Continued)

Sale of upgraded and processed polysilicon, solar ingots and solar wafers to
WWX (Continued)

The WWX Sale Agreement was entered in the ordinary and usual course
of business and on normal commercial terms. The purchase price payable
by WWX to the Group under the WWX Sale Agreement is determined
with reference to the prevailing market price of upgraded and processed
polysilicon, solar ingots and solar wafers.

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the aggregate amount of the
sales proceeds received by the Group from WWX Group in relation to the
sale of upgraded and processed polysilicon, solar ingot and solar wafers
amounted to approximately RMB179,690,000.

Based on the Directors’ estimate of the sales of upgraded and processed
polysilicon, solar ingots and solar wafers in the coming two years, it is
expected that the following annual cap amounts receivable by the Group
for transactions under the WWX Sale Agreement will not exceed:

(@ RMB190,692,000 for the year ending 31 December 2008; and

(b)  RMB239,815,000 for the year ending 31 December 2009.

The Directors believe that WWX Group has been purchasing from the
Group, mainly due to the Group's product quality and reliability. Sales

of upgraded and processed polysilicon, solar ingots and solar wafers

to WWX and its subsidiaries have increased over time and the above
proposed caps are determined with reference to (a) the Group's expected
increase in production capacity (with the Group's ingots production
facilities expected to increase from 100 ingots pullers at present to 196
and that for wafers wiresaw expected to increase from 8 to 12 in the

first half of 2008) and (b) the increase in sales to WWX resulting from the
expected increase in demand for solar based products in Taiwan.

Furthermore, part of the sales of upgraded and processed polysilicon is
determined by reference to WWX's expected consumption of recycled
polysilicon materials as feedstock for its semi-conductor production, in
light of the continued price increase in high-grade polysilicon.

As mentioned in the paragraph headed “Supply of scrap polysilicon, scrap
ingots and scrap wafers by WWX" above, WWX is a connected person, the
transactions under the WWHX Sale Agreement therefore constituted non-
exempt continuing connected transactions for the Company under Rule
14A.35 of the Listing Rules.

The provision of services in respect of acidic wash of silicon, the
processing and production of polysilicon and wafers to WWX.
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NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

B.

Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
(Continued)

Sale of upgraded and processed polysilicon, solar ingots and solar watfers to
WWX (Continued)

On 12 January 2008, the Company entered into a framework processing
agreement with WWX (the "WWX Processing Agreement”) pursuant to
which the Company agreed to provide, or procure its subsidiaries to
provide the services in respect of acidic wash of silicon, the processing
and recycling of top and tail scrap, pot scrap and scrap silicon into
polysilicon and other raw materials necessary for the production of
solar ingots as well as the processing and production of solar wafers to
WWX or its subsidiaries. The WWX Processing Agreement has become
effective on the Listing Date and will expire on 31 December 2009.
Formal agreements (by way of processing orders and confirmations)
will be entered into between the Company (and/or its subsidiaries) and
WWX (and/or its subsidiaries) with the detailed terms and conditions as
specified in the relevant processing orders. The processing arrangement
under the WWX Processing Agreement will be conducted on normal
commercial terms and will be on terms no less favourable than those
available from independent third parties.

The WWX Processing Agreement was entered in the ordinary and usual
course of business and on normal commercial terms. The processing
fee will be subject to the individual processing orders placed by WWX
Group with the Group and will be determined with reference to the
prevailing market price in respect of the processing services provided by
a comparable sub-contractor in the market in the PRC.

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the fees received by the Group
from WWX Group in relation to acidic wash of silicon, the processing and
recycling of top and tail scrap, pot scrap and scrap silicon amounted to
approximately RMB3,543,000.

Based on the Directors’ estimate of the processing services in the coming
two years, it is expected that the following annual cap amounts receivable
by the Group for transactions under the WWX Processing Agreement will

not exceed:

(@) RMB43,910,000 for the year ending 31 December 2008; and

(b)  RMB53,524,000 for the year ending 31 December 2009.

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited [z t8ERIZRGRA T

TERRNEBEBERS @)

TERRZISERERS (8)

A1E ma P EAE MR RN T a2 it - KGN
FERAKGRERER ()

RZZZENF—A+H  ARAESSEEHREIZ
TR T (& @&BEMTHED - Bt - AR
AR ERABREEMERRRA S ENE
RARHEREN B SGERER - SRR iR
BIMTIRBEREERS SREZRE - RREBIEE
FEAFGRERESE RIS RERE P N T R A 2 LA P 7R
RAEL o & @BHRIN T Ha it £ B IR Wi
“EEAF+ZA=+—RHER c ARF(R/ R
HIE AR Ba @R (R AEMBAR) KT
SZIERA ek (VAT AT E REER 2R - EFfAIE
ARG SRFINEEIN T ER - & &R TR
AT Z DT 2 HE & LA LE 5 78 3 IR AR AL A i
MBI EE = 77 AR H A IETT

EHBEMIHEDN SR —REBBREDILIR
ERAEGREIL - MIBEIUARAREREER
MASEEHH@EBINTAE  W2RHEHISRE
BEoEBMREZMTREERHETIAEE -

BHE-_ZT+F+-_A=+—"HLFE ~&£H
PEMEEE - MIRERBEHERR - BER -
EERAASNEEEMEDRNERNRARE
3,543,0007T ©

RRESMETARPENTIRBSEOEEE - Tt A%
Eh & AT HAR TR SEE N IIFE LR
SR EHEB

@ #HEZZEZENFTZAZT-HLFEAR

#43,910,0007C ¢ K&

b)) BE-ZTAE+_A=+—HILFEAR
#553,524,0007C °




Report of the Directors EE&HEE

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

B. Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
(Continued)
Sale of upgraded and processed polysilicon, solar ingots and solar wafers to
WWX (Continued)
The above proposed caps are determined with reference to (a) the
Group's expected increase in processing capacity (with the Group's
ingot production facilities expected to increase from 100 ingot pullers at
present to 196 and that for wafer wiresaws expected to increase from 8
to 24 in the first half of 2008) and (b) the increase in WWX’s demand for
recycled polysilicon materials required for its semi-conductor production,
in light of the continued price increase in high-grade polysilicon. As
recycled polysilicon is a cheaper source of polysilicon raw material for
semi-conductor production, WWX may seek to use a greater portion of
the recycled polysilicon for its semi-conductor production.

As mentioned in the paragraph headed “Supply of scrap polysilicon, scrap
ingots and scrap wafers by WWX" above, WWX is a connected person of
the Company. The transactions under the WWX Processing Agreement
therefore constitute nonexempt continuing connected transactions for
the Company under Rule 14A.35 of the Listing Rules.

Scope of Waiver

The transactions as set out in section (A) “Continuing Connected Transactions
Exempt from Independent Shareholders’ Approval Requirements” above
constituted continuing connected transactions of the Group which are exempt
from independent shareholders’ approval under Rule 14A.34 of the Listing
Rules and are subject to the reporting and announcement requirements set
out in Rule 14A.35(3) of the Listing Rules. The transactions as set out in section
(B) “Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions” above are subject to
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements set out
in Rules 14A.47 to 14A.48 of the Listing Rules.

The Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors, confirmed
that the above continuing connected transactions (the “Continuing Connected
Transactions”) were entered into and conducted in the ordinary and usual
course of business and on normal commercial terms; and the terms and the
proposed annual caps set out above are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Scope of Waiver (Continued)

The Stock Exchange has granted to the Company (a) a waiver from strict
compliance with the announcement requirement under Rule 14A.47 of the
Listing Rules at the time of the Listing in respect of the transaction set out in
section A above; and has granted to the Company, (b) a waiver from strict
compliance with the announcement and independent shareholders' approval
requirements under Rules 14A.47 and 14A.48 of the Listing Rules at the time
of the Listing in respect of the Non-Exempt Transactions set out in section B
above expiring on 31 December 2009.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has conditionally approved and adopted the Share Option
Scheme on 27 February 2008 in which certain participants may be granted
options to subscribe for Shares. The Directors believe that the Share Option
Scheme will be important for the recruitment and retention of quality
executives and employees.

The subscription price for the shares under the option to be granted will be
determined by the Company’s Board of Directors and will be the highest of:

(i)  the official closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets on the date of grant, which must be a day on
which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of dealing in securities;

(i) the average of the official closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(i) the nominal value of a Share.

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and under any other share option schemes of
the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of Shares
in issue immediately following completion of the Global Offering (but taking no
account of any Shares which may be sold pursuant to the exercise of the Over-
allotment Option) and Capitalisation Issue, being 169,076,650 Shares, excluding
for this purpose Shares which would have been issuable pursuant to options
which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme (or
any other share option schemes of the Company).
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

No option may be granted to any person such that the total number of shares
of the Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted
and to be granted to each participant in any 12-month period up to the date of
the latest grant exceeds 1% of the number of shares of the Company in issue.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme at any time during a period as determined by the Board of Directors
of the Company, which must not be more than 10 years from the date of the
grant.

As at the date of this report, no option had been granted or agreed to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sales or redemption by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, of the Company's listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2007.
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INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF THE
COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

The Shares of the Company commenced dealings on the Stock Exchange

on 31 March 2008 (the “Listing Date"). As at the Listing Date, so far as the
Directors are aware, the Directors and chief executives of the Company and
their associates had the following interests in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"), as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the

"Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by

Directors of Listed Issuers ("Model Code”):
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ERER
Ms. ZHANG Liming (Note 4) Beneficial interest 3,133,500 (L) 0.19%
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INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF THE
COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (Continued)

Note:

(1) Theletter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such securities and the letter "S”
denotes the person'’s short position in such securities.

(2)  Mr.TAN has entered into a stock borrowing agreement with BNP Paribas Capital
(Asia Pacific) Limited (“BNP") pursuant to which Mr. TAN agreed to lend up to
50,719,000 Shares to BNP representing approximately 15% of the Shares issued
pursuant to the global offering of the Company ("Global Offering”) (but taking no
account of any Shares which may be sold pursuant to the exercise of the over-
allotment option in connection with the Global Offering (the “Over-allotment
Option”) and the capitalisation Issue on the Listing Date.

(3) Immediately after completion of the Global Offering (assuming the Over-allotment
is not exercised), Prosperity Lamps & Components Limited ("PLC") is interested
in 17,035,500 Shares and Prosperity Electric Corporation (“PEC") is interested in
84,674,000 Shares. PLC is held as to 20% by PEC, as to 45% by Leigh Company
Limited and as to 30% by SAM Wai Keung, a director of Jinzhou Huachang Silicon
Materials Co., Ltd. and 5% by an independent third party. Both PEC and Leigh
Company Limited are wholly-owned by Mr. CHONG, an non-executive Director
who is therefore deemed to be interested in 102,964,000 Shares, representing
approximately 6.09% of the issued share capital of the Company immediately after
completion of the Global Offering (but taking no account of any Shares which may
be sold pursuant to the exercise of the Over-allotment Option).

34,814,000 Shares were held by Mr. CHONG in trust for, among others, certain
employees and consultants of Solar Technology Investment (Cayman) Corp. and

its subsidiaries (the "Acquired Group”). Mr. CHONG was entrusted to exercise
voting rights and hold the dividends and other distributions made in respect of the
relevant Shares in trust for these employees and the 2 consultants (if any) to the
extent the relevant Shares remain subject to a lock-up period.

4) Ms. ZHANG Liming’s 3,133,500 Shares were registered in the name of Mr. CHONG as
trustee who is entrusted to exercise voting rights and hold the dividends and other
distributions made in respect of the relevant Shares in trust for, among others,
certain employees and consultants of the Acquired Group (if any) to the extent the
relevant Shares remain subject to a lock-up period.

(5)  Mr.TAN, Mr. HSU You Yuan and Mr. CHIAO Ping Hai are entitled to buy back the
Shares of the relevant senior management, employees and consultants in the
event that any of them cease to be employed or engaged within 4 years after the
Listing. These directors also have security interest in these Shares pursuant to a
share charge granted by the relevant employees and consultants to secure their
obligations to pay for the purchase price of the Shares and their obligations to
comply with the relevant regulatory requirements to which they are subject to (if
any).
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INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES, EERRXE
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at the Listing Date, so far as the Directors are aware, save as disclosed above,
the persons or corporations (not being a Director of the Company) who have
interest or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO or

have otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:

FERRRR®D - HEARORESFPH

B ETHE - BEEAE  REREES  UATA
THOEE (WIHERRRESE) RAR AR RAEEK D
o R RENMRIEE S BRI FE336EATEDN
BT HERNRFNRERIXE

Percentage of
Name Capacity Number of Shares shareholding
BB 5145 RE BRESL
Wafer Works Investment Corp. ("WWIC") Beneficial owner 358,364,000(L) (Note 1) 21.2%
(Note 2) BEREAA (BftET)
(BF3E2)
Wafer Works Corp. ("WWX") (Note 2) Interest of a controlled corporation 358,364,000(L) 21.2%
ERBBROERAT([E&BHE D (M) S EERER
Space Energy Corporation Beneficial owner 152,439,500(L) 9.02%
FHEERKRA &1 EnEAA
Toshinao Nimura (Note 3) Interest of a controlled corporation 152,439,500(L) 9.02%
(P&E3) REEE RS
Jean Salata Interest of a controlled corporation 114,614,000 (L) 6.78%
R EE RS
Baring Private Equity Asia GP IV Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 114,614,000 (L) 6.78%
REEE RS
Baring Private Equity Asia GP IV, L.P. Interest of a controlled corporation 114,614,000 (L) 6.78%
R EE RS
The Baring Asia Private Equity Fund IV, L.P. Interest of a controlled corporation 114,614,000 (L) 6.78%
REEE RS
Baring Private Equity Asia IV Holding (6) Limited  Beneficial interest 114,614,000 (L) 6.78%
EREEA
Prosperity Electric Corporation (Note 4) Interest of a controlled corporation 84,674,000 (L) 501%

(KfaEa)

S LEEE
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Report of the Directors EE&REE

INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

Note:
1. The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such securities.

2. WWIC is wholly-owned by WWX By virtue of the SFO, WWX is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by WWIC.

3. Toshinao Nimura was interested in approximately 34.22% of the issued share capital
of Space Energy Corporation as at the Listing Date.

4. The entire issued share capital of Prosperity Electric Corporation is wholly owned by
Mr. Chong, a non-executive Director.

Save as disclosed above, as at the Listing Date, the Directors are not aware of

any other person or corporation having an interest or short position in shares

and underlying shares of the Company representing 5% or more of the issued
share capital of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN POTENTIALLY
COMPETING BUSINESSES

Mr. TAN Wenhua ("“Mr. TAN"), Mr. HSU You Yuan (“Mr. HSU"), being the Executive
Directors, and Mr. CHONG Kin Ngai (Mr. CHONG") and Mr. CHIAO Ping Hai

("Mr. Chiao"), being the non-executive Directors, are interested in other related
businesses, particulars of which are set out below:

Mr. TAN

Mr. TAN is interested in 53% interest in $81 2 8 Yt AREHE B R A A
(Jinzhou Huachang Guangfu Technology Co., Ltd.*) ("Huachang Guangfu”)
and 40% interest in Jinzhou Changhua. Huachang Guangfu is engaged in the
manufacturing of PV and solar cells.

Jinzhou Changhua is engaged in the manufacturing of graphite and

graphite related products. The businesses of Huachang Guangfu and Jinzhou
Changhua do not compete with that of the Group. Huachang Guangfu,

being a manufacturer of PV and solar cells, or some other materials (not being
polysilicon), is a downstream company because PV and solar cells are made
from wafers, which the Group manufactures. Huachang Guangfu does not
manufacture any polysilicon, ingots or wafers. On the other hand, Jinzhou
Changhua, as a company which manufactures graphite, is also not a competitor
of the Group because (a) the Group is not engaged in the manufacture of
graphite or any graphite related products; and (b) graphite is not a substitute
for, or alternative raw material to, polysilicon in the manufacture of solar related

products.
* English translation of Chinese official name is for identification purpose only
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN POTENTIALLY
COMPETING BUSINESSES (Continued)

Mr. HSU

Mr. HSU has a direct interest in WWX and an indirect interest in Helitek
Company Ltd., which is a subsidiary of WWX. Mr. HSU also has an indirect
interest in Neo Solar Power Corp. Both WWX and Helitek Company Ltd. are
engaged in the semi-conductor industry. WWX's scope of business includes
the manufacture of silicon wafers for the semi-conductor industry, and Helitek
Company Ltd. is involved in the sale of such silicon wafers in the USA whereas
the Group is engaged in the manufacture of solar wafers.

Although polysilicon is the basic raw material used in the production of
semiconductors and solar cells or solar-related products, the quality and

purity level of the polysilicon required for the production of semiconductors

is higher than that required for the production of solar cells or solar-related
products. Even though WWX manufactures silicon wafers by using polysilicon,
it is not a competitor to the Group because it would not be cost effective for
solar product manufacturers to use costly semi-conductor grade polysilicon

or silicon wafers to manufacture solar products. Besides, Neo Solar Power
Corp., as a manufacturer of solar cells, uses wafers or other materials (not being
polysilicon) as a raw material.

Neo Solar Power Corp. is a downstream company, since it uses the products
that the Group manufactures. Thus, Neo Solar Power Corp. is not a competitor
of the Group.

Mr. CHIAO

Mr. CHIAO has interests in WWX, /84 safEM EHG IR 2 5] (Wafer Works
(Shanghai) Corp*). and Wafer Works Epitaxial Corp. These three companies

are all engaged in the business of manufacturing silicon wafers used in the
semiconductor industry. Mr. CHIAO also has indirect interests in Helitek
Company Ltd. and Heli-Vantech, Inc., both of which are engaged in the trading
of silicon wafers used in the manufacture of semiconductors. As explained
above, the semiconductor industry is different from that of the solar technology
industry; thus, WWX, /84 &REMEHG R 2 7] (Wafer Works (Shanghai)
Corp*). and Wafer Works Epitaxial Corp., Helitek Company Ltd., and Heli-
Vantech, Inc,, are not engaged in any competing business of the Group.

Mr. CHONG

Like Mr. TAN, Mr. CHONG holds interest in Huachang Guangfu and Jinzhou
Changhua. Huachang Guangfu is engaged in the manufacture of PV and

solar cells, Jinzhou Changhua is engaged in the manufacture of graphite and
graphite related products. As explained above, Huachang Guangfu and Jinzhou
Changhua are not competitors of the Company, as the Company, Huachang
Guangfu and Jinzhou Changhua are engaged in different industries. Mr.
CHONG also holds an interest in Jinzhou Youxin, which is principally engaged
in the trading of quartz crucibles.

* English translation of Chinese official name is for identification purpose only
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Report of the Directors EE&REE

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN POTENTIALLY
COMPETING BUSINESSES (Continued)

Mr. CHONG (Continued)

Jinzhou Youxin is not a competitor to the Group because (a) quartz crucibles is
an auxiliary raw material for the manufacture of polysilicon products which the
Group manufactures. Jinzhou Youxin, being in the business of trading quartz
crucibles, is an upstream company which supplies auxiliary raw materials to
the Group; and (b) Jinzhou Youxin does not manufacture any polysilicon or
polysilicon related products.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

The Directors confirm that they have no interest in any business (apart from
the Group's business) which competes or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the Group's business. The Directors have also signed a non-
competition undertaking with the Company.

Disclosure on how the non-competition undertaking has been complied with
and enforced would be consistent with the principles of making voluntary
disclosures under the Corporate Governance Report under appendix 23 to the
Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the non-competition undertaking, Mr. TAN shall continue to be
bound by the terms of the Non-competition Undertaking in the event that he
ceases to be a Director but remains a substantial shareholder of the Company.

The interested Director shall abstain from the meeting where there is actual or
potential conflict in interest.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions”,
no contract of significance to which the Company, its holding company, or any
of its fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set out by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the

Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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BENEFIT SCHEMES

Particulars of the benefit schemes of the Group are set out in note 25 of the
financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

During the year, the Company had not redeemed, and neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased or sold any of the Shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s articles of
association, or the law of Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company is incorporated under which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholder.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listing Issuer as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Special
enquiries will be made by the Company to confirm that all Directors will have
complied with the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2007.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out
in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this annual report.
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Report of the Directors EE&HEE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 27 February 2008 with terms
of references adopted on 20 March 2007 in compliance with the CG Code set
out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The members of the audit committee
are the four independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. Chong Kin Ngai, a
non-excutive Director and Mr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert, an independent non-
executive Director, is the Chairman of the audit committee.

The audit committee is to serve as a focal point for communication between
other directors, the external auditor and the internal auditor (where an internal
audit function exists) of the Company as regards their duties relating to financial
and other reporting, internal controls, external and internal audits and such
other financial and accounting matters as the Board determines from time to
time.

The audit committee is to assist the Board in providing an independent review
of the effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal control and

risk management system of the Group, overseeing the audit process and
performing other duties and responsibilities as may be assigned by the Board
from time to time. The audit committee has reviewed the Group's consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007, including the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float of not less than 25% of the issued share capital of the Company
pursuant to the Listing Rules and as agreed with the Stock Exchange, based
on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors of the Company.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and considers all the Independent Non-Executive Directors to be
independent.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of the significant post balance sheet events are set out in note 36 to the
financial statements of the Group.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company for the year have been audited by
KPMG which will retire, and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditor of the Company is to
be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board

CHIAO Ping Hai
Chairman
Hong Kong, 24 April, 2008
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Independent Auditor’s Report

lcnac

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Solargiga Energy
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 68 to 136, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2007, the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2007

and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance

with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

24 April 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE_ZT+E+_A=+—RALEE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A AR¥FIME)

2006
—EERF
Note RMB'000
Pt ARETTT
Turnover e 4 413,303
Cost of sales FHER A (244,240)
Gross profit EF 169,063
Other revenue Eblg A 5458
Other net loss EAh gt 55 6 (1,185)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEMAY (2,125)
Administrative expenses B X (15,186)
Profit from operations mERE 156,025
Finance costs RE R AN 7(a) (3,875)
Profit before taxation BR B4 B R 7 152,150
Income tax FriSAe 8 (4,034)
Profit for the year FERE 148,116
Attributable to: BTN A R4 FI -
Equity shareholders of the Company AR SR 13 109,670
Minority interests DEIR R 27(i) 38,446
Profit for the year FERE 148,116
Dividends: BE : 9
Final dividend proposed after the HEH B RBIRKER S
balance sheet date 113,658
Earnings per share (RMB cents) BREFN (ARED)
— Basic —EK 10 21.85

The notes on pages 74 to 136 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

At 31 December 2007
R=ZZEZEtF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A AR¥FIME)

2006
ZETRF
Note RMB'000
BtaE ARETTT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WE KRB 14(a) 115,258
Lease prepayments HETEFIE 15 7,772
Prepayments for acquisition of BEWME - WEREE
property, plant and equipment RITEfTFRIE 10,715
Deferred tax assets BREFIEE B 23(b) 755
134,500
Current assets RENEE
Inventories FE 17 127,571
Trade and other receivables FEUCE 5 BR 3k K H b e W 3k 0E 18 85,152
Pledged deposits EERFR 19 5,508
Cash and cash equivalents B RIREEEY 20 46,704
264,935
Current liabilities REAE
Short-term bank loans EEIRITER 21 40,000
Trade and other payables FEHE 5 8RR 2 EL b FE A~ 3R0E 22 88,183
Current tax payable BEAFES 7418 23(a) 1,102
129,285
Net current assets REEEFE 135,650
Total assets less current liabilities EEZAEBAEBERS 270,150
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Municipal government loan MBI ER 21 2,785
Deferred income IRITEUA 24 12,559
15,344
Net assets EEFE 254,806
Capital and reserves BEXRK &
Paid-in/issued capital BB/ BETERN 27(b) 74,858
Reserves & 28 113,948
Total equity attributable to AT ERBRREN
equity shareholders B
of the company 188,806
Minority interests DERRER 27(i) 66,000
Total equity R 254,806

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24 April 2008.

Chiao Ping Hai

Director

EF

The notes on pages 74 to 136 form part of these financial statements.

SE742 136 BT MBI RER 2 —55 o
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Balance Sheet

At 31 December 2007
R_ZETt+F+-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AAREFIE)

Note
k=3
Non-current assets FEREEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE K& 14(b)
Investment in subsidiaries RSB A R RIEE 16
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables FEU B 5 AR F % HLAth L SR IE 18
Cash and cash equivalents B RIBEEED 20
Current liabilities REaE
Other payables H fth fE IR 22
Net current liabilities RENEEFE
Net assets EEFE
Capital and reserves BEARR 27(b)
Issued capital BBTEAR
Share premium B 1D & (B
Accumulated loss REEE
Total equity TEmiAsE

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24 April 2008. BN T\ FOA - TMBELFFAI B o

Chiao Ping Hai Hsu You Yuan
E1E RFFEOR
Director Director

BE EE

The notes on pages 74 to 136 form part of these financial statements.

FE74E=136 AFEHTEBAR I MK 2 — &0 °
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-TTHHE+-A=1+—BILEE
(Expressed in Renminbi)  (JAABRXEFI(E)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

RAREERRELER
Paid-in/ General
issued Share  reserve  Capital Exchange Other  Retained Minority Total
capital  premium fund  reserve  reserve  reserve earnings Subtotal interests  equity
#gr/ & % |
BRTEA RORE  REE  ENEKE  EXRE  RtEE  REEA Mt RREE  EREE
Note RVMBOOO ~ RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMB00O  RMB000  RMBO0O  RMBIO0O
M ARETE ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR

(Note 27(d)) (Note 28(a)) (Note 28(b)) (Note 28(c)) (Note 28(d))

(WEara) (RfEosa) (Miabos) (HfzEas(o) (HizE28()
At1 January 2006 RZEERE-A-A 71786 - 4977 - - - 300 13773 40486 154259
Profitfor the year EEHE - - - - - - 109670 109670 3846 148116
Dividends HRE 9(b) = = = = = = (34637)  (34637)  (12932)  (47569)
Appropriations Ly - - 11962 - - - (11962) - - -
Capitalisation of reserves REaN 2ke) 3072 - (938) - - - (2134) - - -
At 31 December 2006 RZEERE+ZA

=+-A 74858 = 16,001 = = = 97,947 188,806 66,000 254806
At 1 January 2007 R-ZEtE-F-F 74858 N = = - 97047 188806 66000 254806
Profit for the year EEFE - - - - - - 292241 29241 24248 316489
Dividends Y5 9(b) - - - - - - (84300)  (84300)  (29358) (113658)
Arising from the Reorganisation  REAME £ RER 27() (74858) - - - - 76 - (74782) - (4782)
Capitalisation of shareholder'sloan  fREEFE AL b0)] 77,160 - - - - - - 77160 - 7760
Atsing from the Reorganisation  REAMELRER 27h) (77063) 143849 - - - (66786) - - - -
Acquisition of minority interests B D ERER R 27() 3 60857 - - = - - 60890  (608%) -
Issue of new shares TR0 27() 149 162856 - - - - - 163005 - 163005
Share-based payment PRME A58 28(0) - - - 10054 - - - 10054 - 1004
Appropriations it = = 39,170 = = = (39170) = = =
Exchange difference on trandlation AN B2 AETE R
of financial statements of EEMERER
subsidiaries - - - - (357) - - (357) - (357)

At 31 December 2007 RZBBtE+-A=1-H 279 367,562 55171 10,054 (357) (66,710) 266,718 632,717 - 632717
The notes on pages 74 to 136 form part of these financial statements.
E74Z 136 B FTE TR B Kk 2 — &5 °
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE_ZTT+HF+-_A=1+—RHILEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AAREFIE)

2006
—EERF
Note RMB'000
BT ARETFTT
Operating activities RETER
Profit before taxation B %5 51 A1) F 152,150
Adjustments for: R
— Depreciation and amortisation —TEREH 7450
— Gain on acquisition of subsidiaries AN NG ST Eas =
— Gain on disposals of property, plant and —HEYE - BEX
equipment BER = 31)
— Equity-settled share-based payment expenses — IR S A
B&D AR IER S =
— Finance costs — BB KA 3,875
— Interest income from bank deposits — RITFRFBHA (593)
Operating profit before changes in RETEEELEEMN
working capital REFE 162,851
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL S (Em) (112,055)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables — FEUWE 5 BR 7k K E A FEUR
FIER A (35h0) (2,546)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables BN B F IR M E b e
FHE CRd) g 74,665
Increase/(decrease) in deferred income EIEUAIEN, CRAD) (534)
Net cash generated from operations RETHMERETEH 122,381
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid B BIREMEH (3.461)
118,920
Investing activities RETEE
Payment for the acquisition of property, plant MEEME  BENKE
and equipment SR FOE (32,562)
Payment of lease prepayments HETENRIE -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEMZE - HEKEE
and equipment K FT1S 3RIR 650
Net cash outflow from acquisition of subsidiaries WEEHI B AR ELEZRSE
e 29 _
Acquisition of equity interests of the PRC subsidiaries U&= B B B A &) 2 ik Ag 27(f) -
Interest received 2HFILE 593
Net cash used in investing activities RETEFMTARS T (31.319)
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2006

TERF
Note RMB'000
Bt AREFIT
Financing activities RMEED
Placement of pledged deposits EFDEFER (11,945)
Repayments of pledged deposits EEEEFTER 7441
Dividends paid ERRE 9(b) (47,569)
Proceeds from shareholder’s loan Hx%%f KPAT1SFIE -
Proceeds from bank loans and other borrowings RITEREEMEER
ﬁm%,—x 55,799

Repayment of bank loans and other borrowings RITERREMEE 2 &R (76,400)
Issue of new shares BITHRGD 27() =
Interest paid 2RFLE (3,777)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing BMEEEFTE S (FrA)

activities HEFE (76/451)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRRSEEYZBMFERE 11,150
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning FHNBRERBEEEEY

of the year 35,554
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ERSENE -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end FRESRBESEEY

of the year 46,704
Non-cash transaction FHRERS

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Company acquired the 25.58% E
minority interest in Tayaneng by allotting and issuing of 343,708 shares of
HK$0.1 each of the Company (note 27(i)) to the then minority shareholders of

Tayaneng credited as fully paid.

The notes on pages 74 to 136 form part of these financial statements.

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited [5 X 85RIERER A

FE74Z= 136 B FTE M BRI B RER 2

A

5

ETTHHEF+-A=+—HIEFE  RARFMUAR
P AR AR - MTayaneng & 5 A > SR B L 38 B2 8847
343708H§H§@%015’§7EE’]2K Tﬂx@(ﬁ FHo73) - #&
LABE ATayaneng#925.58%
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAR¥FI(E)

74

(a)

(b)

(c)

The Company

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 7

March 2007 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office

is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KYI-1111, Cayman Islands and its principal place of business is Room
4001-06 Office Tower, Convention Plaza, Harbour Road, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong. The Company was incorporated under the name of
Solar Giga Holdings Ltd. By a resolution passed on 26 April 2007, the
name of the Company was changed to Solargiga Energy Holdings
Limited.

Reorganisation

The Company and its subsidiaries are referred to as the “Group”

in the consolidated financial statements. Pursuant to the
Reorganisation of the Group to rationalise the Group's structure in
preparation for the public listing of the Company's shares on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the
Stock Exchange”), the Company became the holding company of
the subsidiaries on 7 May 2007. Details of the Reorganisation are
set out in note 27 to the financial statements. The shares of the

Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on 31 March 2008.

Basis of presentation

Except for Solar Technology Investment (Cayman) Corp. (“STIC") and
its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Acquired
Group”), which were acquired during the year ended 31 December
2007, other companies that took part in the Reorganisation and
included in the financial statements were controlled by the same
ultimate equity shareholder (referred to as “the controlling equity
shareholder”) before and after the Reorganisation. The control is not
transitory and, consequently, there was a continuation of the risks
and benefits to the controlling equity shareholder and, therefore,
the Reorganisation is considered to be a business combination of
entities under common control and Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger
Accounting for Common Control Combinations” has been applied.
The financial statements have been prepared using the merger
basis of accounting as if the Group had always been in existence,
except for the acquisition of the Acquired Group. The net assets of
the combining companies are combined using the existing book
values from the controlling equity shareholder’s perspective.

(a)

(b)

()

ARNF]
RARBBERESBREENERANE(—R—
FEZGER  KERERER)  RZEZT
tF=AtAEHEREIMKIA—RE
PRA ] o H ekt it &5 52 Hb 3k 4 Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands * 1 £ 2 4% & i 24
REAEFAEE 1 RERESHAENE
4001 — 06 = ° ZX A A] B Solar Giga Holdings
LdMBEAMAYL  BR=ZFTZ=LFWA
ZHNHBIBRZESR - B4 ASolargiga Energy
Holdings Limited (B3 X BEIRIZARBBR A R]) ©

B4

HEMBRERA - ARBREWMEB AR SH
RIEEEH] - RERERARMHNEEHS
RBMAR AR ([BRM ) ERAFREET
AEEEHEEREMET TEH AR
AR _ZEELFRAALHRRESHNBAR
VR AR o bl AR A R BN M R
R FE27 - ARBRNDER_ZZENF=H
=+ —REBRZMER L -

25IEAE
BREBEE—ZZEALF+_A=+—BILFE
U B B9 Solar Technology Investment (Cayman)
Corp. ([STIC]) K ECBfT 88 22 & (VAT e[ 4% e
BEE ]I EMRMS RY BRERNMBREK
WEYE AL A RN EE RT1% 559 B AR R M R AR 4
a8 AROR (R R [ R ARE R ARER | ) #2261 o b A% h
REA FERIENEE 0 12 RO R AR R TN AR R
RAEBRER &M - Bk SEAREARH
Riztlz B2 2B a0 X EEAEES
EouR[ HEEGI A2 EHEHE] - R
BEENWEBEERI - BBERRAGHER
HERmE  HNAKE -—FFE - SHAF
ZEEFENERESRRAEN S 2R
FREEA -
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(c)

Basis of presentation (Continued) (c)
The consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement of the
Group include the results of operations of the Company and its
subsidiaries (except for the Acquired Group) for the years ended
31 December 2006 and 2007 or since their respective dates of
incorporation, whichever is a shorter period, as if the current
group structure had been in existence throughout the two years
presented. The consolidated balance sheet of the Group as at

31 December 2006 and 2007 has been prepared to present the
combined assets and liabilities of the Group as at those dates.

Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting

from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised profits but only to the extent that there is no evidence of

impairment.

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets of
subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned by the
Group, whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, and

in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result in
the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
Minority interests are presented in the consolidated balance sheet
within equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Group. Minority interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated income
statement as an allocation of the total profit or loss for the year
between minority interests and the equity shareholders of the
Group.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the minority
interests in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess, and any further
losses applicable to the minority, are charged against the Group's
interest except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation to, and is able to, make additional investment to cover
the losses. If the subsidiary subsequently reports profits, the Group’s
interest is allocated all such profits until the minority’s share of
losses previously absorbed by the Group has been recovered.

The Group acquired the Acquired Group on 26 June 2007. The
purchase method of accounting has been used to account for this

acquisition.

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited B3 X aEIRIZRER AT

25IEEE ()

AEENGABRRER  HSEERZEHRIER
BRERERTBEARBREMBAF (K
WEEERINBEE-ZTRFR-_TTLF
ToA=+—RIEFERBESBRMKT
B HASR (ABE Ay HA RS /2 ) AR & 2R 4
BB RERERM2HRMEFE —EF
o RBEAEER_ZETNFR-_TTLF
ToA=+—BNKREEERER  DRE
FINZE B AKENA I EERAE -

SEARRMEHRERZ AL BAEEARF
MR ZELENETAAZENE - SEREY
BHREHZEIEE - BEEARARRMRSE
ERERBESRAZRMNBNERT X
B - BLLLBREREERR

PEBRRER RIS FAAEEE XL FER
BTSN B GEA W EEHTE QR EEFER
PR R - 7 SR B0 S Rt bt BR X R
FB ABEETMABIMER - BUEARERE
SRR AENANBRBERNANR
F-LPERRBERAHEERBERAN
IR T ALK B R BRE D R
o ARBEEENDBRREZIERA R
mRPIAFEFNERBEAELE D BIR
Has R AR B R R 2 A9 D B

i D EACR i R SRR B E B A
s - ARG K AR ER D HARE
HERERNASE Z#EmPHE - R
BERZETHREAAMELRINEE R
BRER - B AR EKREFHNE - A
AZSENEEE R TAEE#R BEE
Yg Bl BA 1 Fh A8 5 AR B D BRUIR ER B 15 B 18
Rl

AEER —ETLF XA - HRBRERK

BEE - WBKRBLANBBESFTER
H e

75



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf # 3R R M 5

(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAR¥FI(E)

76

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (@)
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"),
which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute

of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that

are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi

(b)

("RMB"), rounded to the nearest thousand, which is the functional
and reporting currency of the Group. They are prepared on the
historical cost basis except as otherwise stated in the accounting
policies as set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates
with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are
discussed in note 34.

aHEy
BRMERREMAEANB BB HREE
A(ZAERARRER B ASEM AT
BERERNEEM B RELER - FEG
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(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists
when the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently

are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(g)(ii)).

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated
in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2(g)(ii)):

- buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold
land, where the fair value of the building could be measured
separately from the fair value of the leasehold land at the

inception of the lease (see note 2(f)); and
- other items of plant and equipment.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and equipment
includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the initial estimate,
where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing the items
and restoring the site on which they are located and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in the income statement on the date of
retirement or disposal.

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited F5 Y 88RIERBR A A
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(d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Depreciation is calculated to write-off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using

the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than 50 years after the date of
completion.

= Plant and machinery 10 years

- Other fixed assets 5 years
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are

reviewed annually.

Construction in progress
Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(qg)(ii)).

Cost comprises direct costs of construction. Capitalisation of these
costs ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to
property, plant and equipment when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use are completed.
No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in progress
until it is substantially ready for its intended use.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions,
is or contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period
of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance

of the arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under finance leases.
Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases.

(d)

(e)
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(f) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged

to the income statement in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
term.

(g) Impairment of assets

@

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables carried at cost or amortised

cost are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.

the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition

of these assets), where the effect of discounting is material.
This assessment is made collectively where financial assets
carried at amortised cost share similar risk characteristics, such
as similar past due status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively are based

on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk

characteristics similar to the collective group.
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(g) Impairment of assets (Continued)

()

(ii)

Impairment of trade and other receivables (Continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through the income statement.

A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset's
carrying amount exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior

years.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
trade and other receivables directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors whose recovery
is considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery
is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written

off against trade debtors directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in the income statement.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

= construction in progress;

- pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as being

held under an operating lease; and

- investment in subsidiaries.
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(g) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)
If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is
estimated.

(9)

BEERE®)

(ii)

HL B BB ()
RHBEAREDR - EEHEEN
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Calculation of recoverable amount —
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its
net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent

of those from other assets, the recoverable amount

is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash flows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses —
An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses —
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine

the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset's
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the
income statement in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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(h)

(i)

()

(k)

Inventories (h)

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories
is recognised as an expense in the period in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories
to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised

as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising
from an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the

period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables (i)
Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and

thereafter stated at amortised cost less allowance for impairment

of doubtful debts (see note 2(g)(i)), except where the receivables

are interest-free loans made to related parties without any fixed

repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial.

In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for

impairment of doubtful debts.

Cash and cash equivalents (i)
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,

demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and

short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible

into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three

months of maturity at acquisition.

Interest-bearing borrowings (k)
Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less

attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,

interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any

difference between the amount initially recognised and redemption

value being recognised in the income statement over the period of

the borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable, using

the effective interest method.
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() Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in accordance
with note 2(0)(i), trade and other payables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(m) Employee benefits
(i) Short term employee benefits
Salaries, annual bonuses and staff welfare costs are accrued
in the period in which the associated services are rendered
by employees of the Group. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their fair values.

(i) Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
Contributions to local retirement schemes pursuant to the
relevant labour rules and regulations in the People’s Republic
of China (“the PRC"), Taiwan and Hong Kong are recognised
as an expense in the income statement as incurred, except to
the extent that they are included in the cost of inventories not

yet recognised as an expense.

(iii) ~ Share-based payments
The fair value of shares allotted and issued to employees is
recognised as an employee cost to the extent that it exceeds
the subscription cost with a corresponding increase in a
capital reserve within equity. The fair value is measured at
the grant date using the price to earning multiples valuation
method, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which shares were allotted and issued. Where the
employees have to meet lock-up conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the shares, the total estimated fair
value of the shares over the subscription cost is spread over
the lock-up period, taking into account the probability that
the shares will continue to be held by the employees.

During the lock-up period, the number of shares that

is expected to continue to be held by the employees is
reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the income
statement for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualified for recognition as an asset, with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve.
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(n)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements

in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements

in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in the income
statement except to the extent that they relate to items recognised
directly in equity, in which case they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of

previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from

unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities and
all deferred tax assets, to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences relate

to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and

are expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried
back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax
loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting

nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the
Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case
of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse
in the future.
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(n)

Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on

the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to
the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends
are recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is

recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise

the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle

simultaneously.
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(o) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities

(i) Financial guarantees issued
Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the "holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of
the guarantee (being the transaction price, unless the fair value
can otherwise by reliably estimated) is initially recognised

as deferred income within trade and other payables. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in accordance
with the Group's policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in the income statement on

initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in the income statement over the term
of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued.
In addition, provisions are recognised in accordance with note
2(0)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of
the guarantee will call upon the Group under the guarantee,
and (i) the amount of that claim on the Group is expected

to exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

(i) Other provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless

the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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(p) Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group and

the revenue can be measured reliably.

(i) Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised in the
income statement when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred to the buyer. Revenue
excludes value added tax and is after deduction of any trade

discounts.

(i) Services rendered
Revenue from services rendered is recognised in the income
statement as and when the services are performed or
rendered.

(iii)  Interest income
Interest income is recognised in the income statement as it
accrues using the effective interest method.

(iv)  Government grants
Government grants are recognised in the balance sheet
initially when there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attached to them. Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as revenue in the income
statement on a systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are recognised in the income
statement over the useful life of the asset.

(v)  Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised
in the income statement in equal instalments over the periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in the income statement as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.

(q) Translation of foreign currencies
Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the income

statement.
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(g) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

(r)

(s)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at
fair value are translated into RMB at foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling

at the dates of the transactions. Balance sheet items are translated
into RMB at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. The resulting exchange differences are recognised directly in a
separate component of equity.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences in equity which relate to that foreign
operation is included in the calculation for the profit or loss on
disposal.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the income statement in the
period in which they are incurred, except to the extent that they
are capitalised as being directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use of sale
are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or

complete.

Pre-operating expenses
Pre-operating expenses are charged to the income statement as
and when incurred.
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(t)

(u)

Related parties (t)
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered
to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one
or more intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise
significant influence over the Group in making financial
and operating policy decisions, or has joint control over the
Group;

(i) the Group and the party are subject to common control;

(i) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture in
which the Group is a venturer;

(iv)  the party is member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Group's parent, or a close family member of
such an individual, or is an entity under the control, joint
control or significant influence of such individuals;

(v)  the party is a close family member of a party referred to in (i)
or is an entity under the control, joint control or significant

influence of such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for the
benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity that is a
related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that
individual in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting (u)
A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that

is engaged either in providing products or services (business

segment), or in providing products or services within a particular

economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to

risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.

The Group's operations are regarded as a single business segment,
being an entity engaged in the trading of, manufacturing of and
provision of processing services for polysilicon and solar silicon
monocrystalline ingots/wafers. In addition, the Group's turnover
and operating profit are almost entirely derived from its operations
in the PRC. Accordingly, no analysis by geographical segment has

been presented.
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(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAARKFI(E)

20

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs and
Interpretations that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group and the Company.

There have been no significant changes to the accounting policies
applied in these financial statements for the years presented as a result
of these developments. However, as a result of the adoption of HKFRS
7, "Financial instruments: Disclosures” and the amendment to HKAS 1,
“Presentation of financial statements: Capital disclosures”, there have

been some additional disclosures provided as follows:

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 7, the financial statements include
expanded disclosure about the significance of the Group's financial
instruments and the nature and extent of risks arising from those
instruments, compared with the information previously required

to be disclosed by HKAS 32, “Financial instruments: Disclosure and
presentation”. These disclosures are provided throughout these financial
statements, in particular in note 33.

The amendment to HKAS 1 introduces additional disclosure requirements
to provide information about the level of capital and the Group’s and the
Company's objectives, policies and processes for managing capital. These

new disclosures are set out in note 28.

Both HKFRS 7 and the amendment to HKAS 1 do not have any material
impact on the classification, recognition and measurement of the
amounts recognised in the financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not
yet effective for the current accounting period (see note 35).

The principal activities of the Group are the trading of, manufacturing
of and provision of processing services for polysilicon and solar silicon
monocrystalline ingots/wafers.
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Turnover represents the sales value of goods supplied to customers less EEEDREETEPHNEYMOHEBERISED &

value added tax and trade discounts and income from the provision of B - WRENTREHMEERA - FA - &
processing services. The amount of each significant category of revenue BRI & SRR M E KA SR T ¢

recognised in turnover during the year is as follows:

2006
ZETRF
RMB'000
AREFT
Sales of polysilicon and solar silicon SHE % mm i KI5 AL B
monocrystalline ingots/wafers =5E RES 390,935
Processing service fees MTARAGE 22,368
413,303
2006
ZEERF
RMB'000
ARETF T
Gain on acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29) I BE R B A R) 2 Weas (FFaE29) =
Government grants (note 24) B R Rh (P 5E24) 4,444
Insurance claims received BlRERES 421
Interest income from bank deposits RITIFE XA BN 593
Rental income from operating leases LERE 2 HES WA -
Others Hit _
5458
2006
ZETRF
RMB'000
ARETFTT
Net foreign exchange loss SNERIEFEE (1.216)
Gain on disposals of property, LEYE - BER
plant and equipment R Eoll € 31
(1,185)
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(Expressed in Renminbi) (A A ER¥ETI{E)

7. Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

7. BRBATFE
BBRTFIEE Mk

2007
—EBE2LF
RMB’000
AR¥T T

Finance costs (a)
Interest on bank loans and other

borrowings wholly repayable within

five years
Interest on municipal government loan

BERA

TANSFNREIEE Z RITER

R B A E RS

MRFEREFE

Total interest expense on financial
liabilities not at fair value through
profit or loss

Less: interest expense capitalised into
construction in progress®

R A FERIEERT

B a BN SR AR

A R TIRE LR

3

BRx
(1,638)

7,578

Staff costs (b)

Contributions to retirement schemes

Equity-settled share-based payment
expenses

Salaries, wages and other benefits

BTRA
RIRGTEIER

R s A E AR ST R X

e TEREMER

Other items (0
Amortisation of lease prepayments
Depreciation

Research and development costs

Write-off of trade receivables

Operating lease charges — property
Auditor’s remuneration

HAIAE

TE AN IR
e

IEI%I
UL 5 AR R 5
REHEX -
REEIE &

The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 5.85% to 6.08% per

annum.

2006
ZETRF
RMB'000
ARETT

3,675
200

3,875

412

14,318

14,730

161
7,289

56
11

& BB AR E L= 5.85%56.08% T AB AL,




(a)

Income tax in the consolidated income statement (a) HEBHERAMESHNRE
represents:
2006
ZETRF
RMB'000
AREEFTT
Current tax - the PRC ENEAFIE — R &
Provision for the year FEEE 4653
Over-provision in respect of prior years  i@1F F EHBEEEE (62)
4,591
Deferred tax ELEBE
Origination and reversal of temporary BRI ZEE 2 IR KRB E
differences (note 23(b)) (FF7E23(0)) (557)
4,034

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group did not have any assessable profits subject to Hong Kong
Profits Tax during the year.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income tax in
the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands.

Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations of the PRC,

the subsidiaries in the PRC are eligible for a 100% relief from

PRC Enterprise Income Tax for two years from the first year they
record assessable profits and, thereafter, they are subject to PRC
Enterprise Income Tax at 50% of the applicable income tax rate

for the following three years. The PRC subsidiaries of the Group
are registered as production oriented enterprises in Shanghai and
Jinzhou, Liaoning Province, both of which are coastal open areas of
the PRC, and, therefore, enjoy a preferential PRC Enterprise Income
Tax rate of 27% according to the income tax rules and regulations
in the PRC.
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(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAARKFI(E)

94

(a)

Income tax in the consolidated income statement (a)
represents: (Continued)

The first year that Jinzhou Xinri Silicon Materials Co., Ltd. (“Xinri")

recorded assessable profits was 2001 and, therefore, Xinri was

subject to a 50% tax exemption starting from 2003. As Xinri is

engaged in an advanced technology business in the PRC, it has

been granted an extension of the 50% tax exemption for a further

three years. Accordingly, Xinri was subject to a preferential tax rate

of 13.5% for the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2007.

The first year that Jinzhou Huachang Silicon Materials Co., Ltd.
("Huachang”) recorded assessable profits was 2003. It was fully
exempted from PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the year ended 31
December 2004 and subject to a preferential tax rate of 13.5% for
the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2007.

The first year that Jinzhou Huari Silicon Materials Co., Ltd. ("Huari”)
recorded assessable profits was 2005. It was fully exempted from

PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the year ended 31 December 2006
and subject to a preferential tax rate of 13.5% for the year ended

2007.

The first year that Jinzhou Yangguang Energy Co,, Ltd. ("Yangguang")
recorded assessable profits was 2006. It was fully exempted from
PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the year ended 31 December 2006
and 2007.

Jinzhou Youhua New Energy Co,, Ltd. (“Youhua") and Shanghai
Jingji Electron Materials Co., Ltd. ("Jingji") are subject to preferential
tax rates of 13.5% and 27% respectively for the year ended 31
December 2007 (2006: 13.5% and 27% respectively).
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(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (b) BT HESTTABRBEAREGE
profit at applicable tax rates: 2R
2006
TTRF
RMB'000
AREEFTT
Profit before taxation RN 152,150
Notional tax on profit before taxation MREAIRE 2 BERIA
calculated at 27% B27% 2 BRE 41,081
Effect of non-deductible expenses AR 2 f 2 2,171
Effect of non-taxable income %TR%U\Z 2 -
Effect of tax concessions obtained m%{ﬁizﬁ“ (39,156)
Effect of different taxation rate used E@Eﬁﬁ AUERERE
in other jurisdiction TRBEZ ?/ﬁ“ -
Over-provision in prior years BT E R (62)
Actual tax expense BEERHIBHY 4,034
(c) Law on Corporate Income Tax in the PRC () FRETZERBEEA

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the Tenth National
People’s Congress passed the Corporate Income Tax Law of the

PRC (“new tax law") which will take effect on 1 January 2008. From

1 January 2008, the corporate income tax rate will adjust to the

standard rate of 25% with effect from 1 January 2008. For Foreign

Investment Enterprises (“FIE"s) which have not fully utilised their

five-year tax holiday (i.e. two-year exemption and subsequent

three-year 50% reduction of the applicable tax rate) will be allowed
to continue to receive the benefits of the tax holiday during the
five-year grandfathering period. For those FIEs which have not yet
begun their five-year tax holiday period, the tax holiday period will
be deemed to have commenced from the effective date of the new
tax law.

Further under the new tax law, from 1 January 2008 onwards, non-
resident enterprises without an establishment or place of business
in the PRC or which have an establishment or place of business
but the relevant income is not effectively connected with the
establishment or a place of business in the PRC, will be subject

to withholding tax at the rate of 5% or 10% on various types of
passive income such as dividends derived from sources in the PRC.
Distributions of the pre-2008 earnings are exempted from the

above-mentioned withholding tax.
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(AAREIIE)

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(a) Dividends attributable to the year (@ FEEGRE
2006
ZEERF
RMB'000
ARETFT
Final dividend proposed after the RATNEEE BEER
balance sheet date of RMB5.2 cents IREAIR B IR A RS2 (5.87 1)
(HKS5.8 cents) per share
by the Company =
Final dividend proposed after the RARETHBA
balance sheet date by certain REEEH é?ﬁm;}fﬁ%@%@ﬂi@
subsidiaries of the Company 113,658
113,658

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the board of directors’
meeting on 27 February 2007, dividends of RMB113,658,000 were
declared by certain subsidiaries of the Company to their then

shareholders.

The 2006 final dividend per share and the number of shares ranking

for dividend are not presented above as such information is not

meaningful having regard to the purpose of the consolidated

financial statements.

The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date has not

been recognised as a liability on the balance sheet.

(b) Dividend attributable to the previous financial year, (b)
approved and paid during the year

BRE_ZZLEF_A-_+ERABTESES
FBEBWARE  ARAETHEA TEW

HEEZFNRR SRS ARE113,658000
ﬁo
HRZZTAFEREERE A EREN

BOBERGAMBREAME LRSS @ &
WERZHBEER -

NREERRMTEZ 2 RS
RPWAERRDAE -

REE&RE

REERUER A UEM BF ERAG

RE

2006
— 7 = / \EF
RMB'000
ARETFT
Final dividend in respect of the REERUAE R ST A G BRFEE
previous financial year, approved and IRERRR S
paid during the year 47,569
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(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BRERZER
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit BREKRBF IIRBEARA A EBRERRR
attributable to the ordinary equity shareholders of the Company FE A5 FE A K 292,241,0007T ( —TEREF
of RMB292,241,000 (2006: RMB109,670,000) and the 501,874,333 A R ¥109,670,0007C ) A R AR A B B 1T &
ordinary shares of the Company in issue and issuable, comprising A TR ITE@A%501,874333W(BIE-SZT+
2,874,333 ordinary shares in issue at 31 December 2007 and F+_A=+—HBE#TLBR2874333K
499,000,000 ordinary shares to be issued to the shareholder of K8 4T F % 3R 3 38 A% 499,000,0008% - E A
this 2,874,333 ordinary shares as if the shares were outstanding 2874333 EBRINBREN-_ZTER-F
throughout 2006 and 2007. THEREAFEDLET)HE -
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BREZRA
There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue during the HE-ZZRGER-ZFETtLtF+=_A=+—
year ended 31 December 2006 and 2007. HIEFE @ WERAEEZENEEEmR -
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of Hong Kong BIEEBATEII6HEMKRBENESHE T ¢
Companies Ordinance is as follows:
2006
ZETREF
Basic
salaries,
allowances
and
benefits Retirement
in kind scheme Share-based
EXRHSE contributions payments
Fees 2R Bonus RIK Sub-Total LARRAD Total
e BEOE TR EEIER NEE XNFUE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETRT AR%®TT ARETRT
Executive directors HITES
Tan Wen Hua BN E - 124 150 9 283 - 283
Yu Jian Yun TEE - 75 133 2 210 - 210
Zhang Li Min REEAR - 76 100 6 182 - 182
Zhang Yue Wen TRIRIL - 70 80 5 155 - 15
Total st = 345 463 22 830 - 830
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(Expressed in Renminbi) (A A ER¥ETI{E)

11.

12.

Directors’ remuneration (Continued)

Basic
salaries,
allowances
and

benefits

in kind

BEXHE

Fees 2ER
e  BUNE

RMB'000  RMB'000
ARMTT AR%TR

Executive directors HiTES
Tan Wenhua ExE
Hsu You-Yuan B
Zhang Liming REHR
Total it

No remuneration was paid to independent non-executive directors
during the year (2006: RMB nil).

Note: This represents the estimated value of shares allotted and issued to the
directors of STIC on 24 June 2007 (note 26). The value of these shares is
measured in accordance with the Group's accounting policies for share-
based payment transactions as set out in note 2(m)(iii).

Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three are directors
whose emoluments are disclosed in note 11 (2006: four). The aggregate of
the emoluments in respect of the remaining two (2006: one) individuals
with the highest emoluments are as follows:

1. EEZ®M e

Share-based

Retirement payments

scheme (note)

contributions Y3
Bonus  R{k3tE  Sub-Total  XAFE Total
A #= Nt (HzE) @
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’'000
ARETE ARETR ARETR ARETn AR®Txn

1,695
1,753
95 591

579 4,039

AEER - ARALEABLIFRTEER M ER
e (“FBAF | ARMET) -

M - =TT H4FN A -+ R ASTICE S A% &
BITRM G EB(HRE206) - ZSERMHHE
18 TH AR AR B T 2(m) i) T 8 A 55 ) A BB IR 1D = f+F
REMETBEE At EH -

12. REHFMAL
AR BBHFMALTE= R AEE(ZTEAE -
P) - REMFBRAERE - B TRE RS
FMAL(CTTAF : —R)OHFHEEMT

Basic salaries, allowances and benefits EARF S R REDFE
in kind

Retirement scheme contributions BORGT B

Share-based payments LARR 19 2 A~ 5/ 78

2007 2006
—2E2LHF =TENE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFTT
52

3




The emoluments of the remaining two (2006: one) individuals with the BTIMERETMAL(ZZTTRE  —R)HFH M

highest emoluments are within the following bands: BUAT AR -
2006
ZETRF
Number of
individuals
N ¢
Nil - RMB933,532 TLE ARK9335327C 1
(equivalent to Nil to HK$1,000,000) (FBFEMRZITE1,000,000787T)
RMB933,533 — RMB1,400,298 AR #5933,53370 % AR ¥51,400,2987C -
(equivalent to HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000) (A #21,000,001 7T 1,500,00078 7T )
1
During the year, no emoluments have been paid by the Group to the RAEE  AEEHMERES  SRTHRAERA
directors, senior executives or any of the five highest individuals as an k= E A T NEM - ERIMBAREE SR
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for REEERN RIS - SMERBEERME -

loss of office.

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the RN FRER IR R EGERE FE 2 HE A R 2,405,000
Company includes a loss of RMB2,405,000 (2006: RMB nil) which has been THEE(ZZTT AT ARBZT) - WEFAKR
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company. NAETEREA
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(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAR¥FI(E)

(@) The Group (@) AE&EE
Plant,
machinery Furniture
and and
Construction equipment Motor fittings
inprogress  Buildings [ - 4 vehicles RAR Total
HEIR B RRB RE BB et

RVB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RVB'000
ARETE  ARETT ARETRE ARETL ARETR ARETE

Cost: B
At T January 2006 R=ZT F—F—A 60,776 7,838 27,735 2323 2194 100,866
Additions NE 13,141 3,645 11434 659 1,065 29,944
Transfer R (70,885) 6,062 64,019 = 804 =
Disposals HeE - - (1,849) - - (1,849)
At 31 December 2006 RZTTAE+=-A=+—H 3,032 17,545 101,339 2,982 4,063 128,961
Accumulated Ritig

depreciation:
At 1 January 2006 R-ZT F—A—H = 464 6,760 146 274 7,644
Charge for the year FENE - 436 5925 337 591 7,289
Written back on disposals HEEER - - (1,230) - - (1,230)
At 31 December 2006 R-ZEEXE+-A=1-H = 900 11,455 483 865 13,703
Net book value: IREFE
At 31 December 2006 R-ZEXE+-A=1+-8 3,032 16,645 89,884 2499 3,198 115,258
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(a) The Group (Continued) (a) AEEG®)
Plant,
machinery Furniture
and and
Construction equipment Motor fittings
in progress Buildings §FE - #2% vehicles RAR Total
HEIR gF & RE EERE #et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETr ARETT ARETT ARETR
Cost: B
At T January 2007 R=ZZ+F—A—A 3,032 17,545 101,339 2,982 4,063 128,961
Additions nNE
- through acquisition of —BBRYENBAR
subsidiaries (note 29) GiEZ) 698 5,865 24416 2,074 701 33,754
- others —Hff 21,297 1,115 22,105 2274 1,340 48131
Transfer L3 (3.994) 539 3455 - - -
Disposals HeE - - (2439) (245) - (2,684)
At 31 December 2007 R-ZE+E+-A=1—H 21,033 25,064 148876 7,085 6,104 208,162
Accumulated depreciation: RiH7E :
At T January 2007 R=ZZ+F—A—A - 900 11,455 483 865 13,703
Through acquisition of FRRENBLAR
subsidiaries (note 29) (i) - 1392 6,291 765 179 8,627
Charge for the year FEME - 743 9323 637 809 11512
Written back on disposals &R B m - - (837) (222) - (1,059)
At 31 December 2007 R-ZZE+F+-A=1+-H = 3,035 26,232 1,663 1,853 32,783
Net book value: REEE
At 31 December 2007 R-EZ+F+-A=1+-H 21,033 22,029 122,644 5422 4,251 175,379
BB EERIERER AT 101
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(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAR¥FI(E)

(b) The Company (b) AAF]
Office
equipment
WMAERE
RMB'000
ARETFT
Cost: AR :
As at 7 March 2007 RZZT+F=A+H -
Additions NE 121
As at 31 December 2007 R=ZBZ+F+=-A=+—H 121
Accumulated depreciation: BIHIE -
As at 7 March 2007 RZZET+F=A+H -
Charge for the year FENE 10
As at 31 December 2007 R-ZEZL+F+-HA=+—H 10
Net book value: FRTEEE :
As at 31 December 2007 R=TZT+F+=—A=1+—8 1

() All of the Group's property, plant and equipment is located in the () ANEEZIME - MEREEHNPFE -
PRC.

(d) Certain buildings, machinery and equipment as at 31 December (d) BOAMFEN@QMEE  R_TZTRF+=A
2006 were pledged against bank loans granted to the Group as =+—H BTEF ERIRIZEEEET
disclosed in note 21(a). REEHRITER 2R

(e) The Group has yet to obtain property ownership certificates of () AEBMAESETEFNEEMAREE -
certain buildings with an aggregate net book value of RMB3,149,000 RZZZALFFTZA=+—H  ZFEFH
(2006: RMB nil) as at 31 December 2007. Notwithstanding this, the BRE R EA%E A AREE3149000T( ZEE X
directors are of the opinion that the Group owned the beneficial F:ARBTI) - A EFRAAEER
title to these buildings as at 31 December 2007. —ET L FE+ A=+ BHEZETETH

BEREE -
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The Group

AEH
2006
ZEERF
RMB'000
ARETFT
Cost: AR :
As at 1 January R—A—8 8,040
Additions NE =
As at 31 December R+=-—B=+—H 8,040
Accumulated depreciation: 2iHirE .
As at 1 January Rn—A—8 107
Charge for the year FETE 161
As at 31 December R+=-—B=+—H 268
Net book value: FREEE :
As at 31 December R+=-—A=+—8H 7,772

(@)  Lease prepayments represent the cost of land use rights in respect
of land located in the PRC, which expire on 29 April 2055 and 27
August 2057.

(b) Lease prepayments were pledged against bank loans granted to
the Group as at 31 December 2006 as disclosed in note 21(a).

HAEBENFEARP H AT 2 i
FARERA @ ST EREEN "SRR F
MA-+thABR-ZERA+ENA=-++EE
i ©

AT 21 @ RE KB RF+ A
=t+—B HEREMNRBREARTAEEDN
RITEFZ B

The Company
N
RMB'000
ARETT

Unlisted shares, at cost E LTRSS + RAKA

367,841

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited F5 Y 88RIERBR A A
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(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAR¥FI(E)

The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries which principally

affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares

held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

TRESWBRARNFE  MREMNBARTIEY
BAREFERE  BENXEE - RIESHME @ AR
BEB R AR

Proportion of

Place and Authorised/ ownership interest
date of registered/ FEERENLE
incorporation/ paid-in/ heldbythe  heldbya
operation issued capital Company  subsidiary
Names of companies HEMR/ B/ 2R/ MARAT =100 Principal activities  Legal form
AR EH RERERAH HRERTER 2] AEEE TEEH EERR
% %

WINESRMEBRAR The PRC Registered and paid-in - 100 Manufacturingand ~ Limited
(Huachang) 11 June 2002 capital of RMB 11,000,000 processing of liability
(TSRMEE ] H aftRERER monocrystalline company

=ZTE o AR11,00000070 ingots BREEAH
~AT—A R RINT B RhEdE

SBINEREMEBRAR The PRC Registered and paid-in - 100 Manufacturingand  Limited
(Huari) 1 March 2004 capital of Japanese processing of liability
(TERMER ) H Yen (*JPY") 180,000,000 monocrystalline company

—ZTTmEF BERIISE =N ingots BREERT
=A-H 180,000000R EI([ R E]) ER AT E Rk iE

SN BBEMEBRAR The PRC Registered and paid-in - 100 Manufacturingand  Limited
(Jinzhou Rixin Silicon 9 May 2007 capital of RMB10,000,000 processing of liability
Materials Co, Ltd.) il it R R E R monocrystalline company

i o2 A& 1000000070 ingots/wafers BREEAH
AANA SUERMIE S
i/ TR

BMETBEMRERAR The PRC Registered and paid-in - 100 Manufacturingand ~ Limited
(Xinri) 18 September 2000 capital of JPY94,000,000 processing of liability
(IBMER 1) H BRIINSE - monocrystalline company

—ZTTTF 94000000H ingots/wafers BREAAT
NA+NB SERMTEA
iR/ R

BN ae R AR AR The PRC Registered and paid-in = 100 Manufacturing and Limited
(Yangguang) 15 December 2004 capital of RMB95,000,000 processing of liability
(TSRMBEX ) H A RFRER monocrystalline company

“ZTNEF ARE95000,0007T ingots/wafers BEREEAT
+ZA+ER BERNTER
it/ TR

104

Annual Report 2007 G



Proportion of

Place and Authorised/ ownership interest
date of registered/ FrERERLE
incorporation/ paid-in/ heldbythe  heldbya
operation issued capital Company  subsidiary
Names of companies HEMRL/ BT/ HERS RALAT 1) Principal activities  Legal form
NEER SEHERAH BREERTER ] ARRE TEER EERR
% %

WINMEERTRERARAR The PRC Registered and paid-in - 100 Manufacturingand ~ Limited
(Youhua) 28 March 2005 capital of RMB59,000,000 processing of liability
(TERMEZE]) H T R R AR monocrystalline company

“TTRE A 59,000,00070 ingots BREEAF
=A=tNH SUER T8 RREE

HERREFMRBRAR The PRC Registered and paid-in - 100 Processing and trading  Limited
(Jingji) 16 March 1998 capital of United States of polysilicon and liability
(T E8RR]) H Dollars (“USS") 700,000 monocrystalline company

—ANE A kAR ER ingots/wafers BREFEAT
=ZAt7<E 700000 7T([E7T)) MIREESRER
BRER/ER
Solar Technology Investment Cayman Islands Authorised capital of ("HKS") 100 - Investment holding ~ Limited
(Cayman) Corp. 15 December 2006 400,000,000 of HK$0.10 RAER company
HEHS each and issued share liability
ZZTRE capital of HK$ 167,895,494 BERELAT
+=A+HaH SETE A 78400,000,00087T([E7L]) -
BREEIBTRE
BT 167,895 494 T
Tayaneng Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Authorised share capital 100 - Investment holding ~ Limited
(‘Tayaneng’) 15 August 2006 of US$50,000 of USS1 REEK liability
RERIHS each and issued share company
“TERF capital of US$13,437 BREFAT
NATER JETERARS0000%ETT *
BREEIETR
EBITRARI3437%T

Wealthy Rise International Hong Kong Authorised share capital - 100 Dormant Limited
Limited 21 June 2007 of HK$10,000 of HK$1 Ligsxd liability

SENTERBERAR EE each and issued share company

“TTE capital of HKS1 ERETAT
~AZT—A EERA100007ETT -
BREMBIBTR
BETRAET
Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited [5 X 85RIERER A 105



Notes to the Financial Statements B 15 3% 3% Fff 5+

(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAREFIE)

(@) Inventories in the consolidated balance sheet (@) HKEEEABRZFEERRE:
comprise:
The Group
AEH

2006

ZETRF

RMB'000

ARETT

Raw materials B 79,989

Work-in-progress EER 5513

Finished goods UK 42,069

127,571

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised (b) BAABITHNEESESFAT :
as an expense is as follows:
The Group
AEH

2006

ZETRF

RMB'000

AREFT

Carrying amount of inventories sold EEEFEMEREE 244,240
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The Group The Company
AEH AT
2006
ZZTRF
RMB'000
ARETFTT
Trade receivables (note 18(a)) FEUE 5 AR (P15 18()) 68,339
Other receivables, prepayments HAbEWGIE « AN KB RIES
and deposits (note 18(b)) (MF3E18(b)) 16,813
Amount due from a related party FE W A T %8 (M FE30(0))
(note 30(c)) -
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUH B A Rl kB (P EE18(d))
(note 18(d)) -
85,152

All of the trade and other receivables (including amounts due from

subsidiaries) are expected to be recovered within one year.

(@)  The ageing analysis of trade receivables as of the balance sheet

date is as follows:

Fi A & W 5 BR R e EL A FE MK TR (/2 5 BT /B
RAFIR) BN —F Rk -

@ REHERD BEESRFIZEEITOT

The Group
TEE

2006
ZZTRF
RMB'000
ARETFTT
Within 1 month HEAR 55,811
1= 3 months 12318 A 11,159
3 - 6 months 3E6fE A 333
6- 12 months 621218 A 987
1 - 2vyears [EVES 49
68,339

The Group normally allows a credit period of 30 — 90 days to its

customers.

Included in trade receivables are aggregate amounts due from
related parties of RMB32,991,000 (2006: RMB9,780,000) as at 31

December 2007 (note 30(c)).

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited [5 X 85RIERER A

AEE—RETFEFIE0BNEER -

R_EELF+_A=+—H8 EKESH
EREEEWNEET c RBEEABEARK
32,991,0007C (Z TR F : AR 19,780,000
70) (MF#E30(0) °
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Included in the Group's other receivables, prepayments and
deposits are prepayments for the purchase of raw materials from
related parties of RMB351,000 (2006: RMB nil) as at 31 December
2007 (note 30(c)).

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are past due but not
impaired as of the balance sheet date:

) RIZBZLF+T_A=+—RH KTEENH
b FEURIR - AN IR RS BEREET
1B B R RPN 2 AN IR A R #5351,000
T(ZBTRF - ARBZT) (FIEE30() °

© MNEER  BHREEELERENERE
SRR BRE AT -

The Group
rEH

2006
ZEERF
RMB'000
AREEFTT
Less than T month past due BHA LR 1 E A 3,892
1 to 3 months past due wHER1 = 31E A 3,170
3 to 6 months past due #HA3 =6 fE A 401
6 to 12 months past due Az 1218 A -
1to 2 years 15224 -
7463

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of individual customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances
which are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

80 B R Wi [ 488 3 S8 k1 ) 8 W SR OR B AR £ [
HERA RIFEELENERNTFER - 1R
BAGERSR  EREREETRZSER
RAEEE  BERBRSEKDIT2EK
Bl - AEE 2 F AR A EAER S o

o) EUEMBARFIER/EER RERARE
SRENE e m -

The Group
TEH
2006
—ETRF
RMB'000
ARETT
Guarantee deposits for issuance VERBEBERBEZFIER
of letters of credit 5,508

The deposits pledged as security for bank loan are non-interest bearing.

ERBITERZERMERB TR -
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The Group The Company

AEE ZINNE|

2006

—EERF

RMB'000

ARETFT

Cash at bank and in hand RITERERBES 46,704
Cash and cash equivalents of RMB313,208,000 (2006: RMB34,602,000) R-ZETHE+-—A=+—H  AEEZEEBEL K
as at 31 December 2007 are denominated in RMB. RMB is not a freely BEEEYWARY313208000(ZEEF : AR
convertible currency and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject #34602,0007T) * HAARETSIE - AREE ST
to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC government. BERALBENEE  MERRELRES AT RBA

SN & I FTER.

The analysis of the carrying amount of interest-bearing borrowings is as HEEENERSESTOT
follows:
The Group
AEH
2006
ZETRF
RMB'000
ARETFT
Short-term bank loans RAISRITER
— unsecured — AR 30,000
— secured (note 21(a)) — B A (HI21() 10,000
40,000
Long-term loan RHAER
— municipal government loan — BT ER(M3EQ1b))
(note 21(b)) 2,785
42,785
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(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAREFI(E)

(@)  The short-term bank loans are repayable within one year or on
demand and are collateralised or guaranteed as at the balance
sheet date as follows:

@ MNEER  AR—FREEXBREZRAE
EEREERLERNEBRITEROT :

The Group
AEE
2006
ZETRF
RMB'000
ARETT
Secured by assets (note 21) LAE R (MEE21) 10,000

The carrying value of assets secured against bank loans as at the
balance sheet date is analysed as follows:

NEER - (EARITERERNEENRER
(ER0 T UM

The Group
REE
2006
ZEERF
RMB'000
ARETT

e
HEFRNFIA

Property, plant and equipment
Lease prepayments

12,426
7,772

20,198

(b)  The municipal government loan is repayable as follows:

(b) FEEETETERNT:

The Group
REE
2006
ZEERF
RMB'000
ARETT

After 2 years but within 5 years —FHREREFA
After 5 years AFEAE

353
2432

2,785

The municipal government loan was received by the Group for
constructing a manufacturing plant in Jinzhou, Liaoning Province,
the PRC. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies

relating to the municipal government loan. It is unsecured, interest
bearing at a fixed rate of 2.55% per annum and is fully repayable by

instalments from 2010 to 2020.

110

RNEBERHBEFEEE M ERZERENE
MBI ER ° B @A TERATE BT R EK
RIE kA= - B AEIEN - ME(ETE
FERE)S5Y) RER_TE—TFE_T_T
FHAM D HEEUEE -
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The Group The Company

AEE AT
2006
TTRF
RMB'000
ARKEFTT
Trade payables (note 22(a)) JEfTE IR (FiF7E22(a)) 58,381
Other payables and accrued expenses  H b ERTBR R R FE TR S 9,752
Amount due to a subsidiary (note 22(b))  FE{FHTE A &l FIAE (M EE22(b)) -

Amounts due to related parties FE A~ Bas& 5 53 (FIRE30(d))

(note 30(d)) 20,000
Amount due to a director (note 30(e)) et —BEE 2 5B (HIEE306)) 50
88,183

All of the trade and other payables (including amounts due to related

%%BFEHT%EE R E AL FEAN IEJ’*EHHTE’\‘—im

parties, a subsidiary and a director) are expected to be settled within one 8 BIEREMEE S O BB AR KIER
year. J:1TT*%§$ZEAIE o
(@) The ageing analysis of trade payables as of the balance sheet date is @ RHEEH ENESRAXOKEITET
as follows:
The Group
EH
2006
ZETRF
RMB'000
ARETT
Within 1 month EH A 44,216
1- 3 months 12318 A 9411
3 - 6 months 3Z6fEA 1,306
6 - 12 months 6Z 1218 A 3,230
1 - 2years 1224 218
58,381

Included in trade payables are amounts due to related parties of
RMB26,762,000 (2006: RMB26,533,000) at 31 December 2007 (note

30(d)).

(b)  The amount due to a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited [585RIERBR A

2

R—EELE+—_F=+—0  ENBIZE
HEIEEMEES T I@xE?—%%mzoooﬁ(—
=

TEZNE - ARB26,533,0007T) (HiFE30(d)

3

) ENHBEAR
SKENEFEAE o

FERELR  2ERARE
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(a) Current taxation in the consolidated balance sheet (a) HEEEEEBEXRAMEHBFRENRRE
represents:
The Group
AEH

2006

—EERF

RMB'000

ARETTT

(b)

Provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax ~ FEE B2 SR EE

for the year 4653
Addition through acquisition of I Wiz B P8 A R A 482 g (FfT =E29)
subsidiaries (note 29) -
Provisional PRC Enterprise Income Tax B E £ B 2 A
paid (3,461)
1,192
Balance of Profits Tax provision relating B BA FE RIS EE R &
to prior years (90)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax payable B FEAEHR 1,102
Deferred tax assets recognised (b) FERIELEBIEEE
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the EREEEERBRRANERNRLEHIEEE
consolidated balance sheet and the movements during the year are S (BE)NEE RERESHIT ¢
as follows:
The Group
&M
Fair value
adjustment
upon
acquisition
of a subsidiary Total
Government Other WK B B 2007
grant expenses K szt
BUEHE Hitpix AT EAR —EBLHF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Deferred tax arising from:

As at 1 January 2006
Credited to the income statement

RE NI BRAELHA

R-ZEENF—A—H - 198 - 198
RUERETA(FFESE))

(note 8(a)) - 557 - 557
At 31 December 2006 R-EEXFE+-_A=1+—H - 755 - 755
As at 1 January 2007 RZET+ ¢ HA—H - 755 - 755
Addition through acquisition of R B R RIS INEE

subsidiaries (note 29) (W%E\B) = - (3,347) (3,347)
Credited/(charged) to the income PR A/ (F08) (B Es(@))

Statement (note 8(a)) 922 (755) 3,347 3514
At 31 December 2007 T +FF+ZA=1—H 922 - - 922

Annual Report 2007 G



Various government grants have been received by the Group for
generating export sales and constructing a manufacturing plantin
Jinzhou, Liaoning Province, the PRC. In addition, certain government
grants have been received by the Group to compensate for its research
and development expenses in relation to the manufacturing of mono-
crystalline ingots and solar wafers and interest expenses for certain
specific loans. Amounts of RMB3,437,000 (2006: RMB4,444,000) for the
year ended 31 December 2007 have been recognised in the income
statement.

The remaining unused balances as at each balance sheet date are
included in the consolidated balance sheet as deferred income. There are
no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these grants.

Employees of the Group's PRC subsidiaries are required to participate

in a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme administered

and operated by the local municipal government. The Group's PRC
subsidiaries are required to make contributions to the scheme at 20% of
the employees’ salaries for the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2007
to fund the retirement benefits of the employees.

The Group is required to participate in defined contribution retirement
schemes administered and operated by Bureau of Labour Insurance
of Taiwan for employees employed in Taiwan. Under the schemes the
employer is required to make contributions to the schemes at 6% of
the employees' relevant income. Contributions to the schemes vest
immediately.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$20,000. Contributions
to the MPF scheme vest immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of retirement
benefits associated with the schemes beyond the contributions described
above.

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited B3 X aEIRIZRER AT

REEREE L OHE RN REZELBMNER—
RSB E RS TR Z BT o toh - AEETR
BSE THRTHHAE A E B EL RS B8 & fe ARG RE AT
RZHERY - REETHREERZHEHAS
HE-_TTLE+-_A=+—BLLFE  RkFEX
R ZIEERA B AR 437,000 ( ZFTRF ¢
ANER#E4,444,0007T) °

REGBEB > RPAZEREMAGEEERR
= IMERERA - SRR SHEEM S - ARELE
) AR R SR BT AR IR -

REE D EE R R EE RS EH X B A TR
EERERNERETERAENFE - BE_TF
NERZZEZLFE+_A=+—BILFE ' &%
b B Y B R RIZR shat 3 0 B R 8 H 2 #9200
A RESRKRBIREHRES -

AEEARTRN SEOESR S & ESTRR
REEREROTEEIRCEHEE o RIEK
8] - (B /AR B AR Mo T BIELE (43K -
£ SE 4 Y BESREDES SR8

REEREREESRHEABESFENEN - AH
ZEBEEEOMEE THREER L AGEATES
FEI(RTESEE]) - eS8 AT EETRK
TE BBUTIEAEE c BELSHEBEEEZR
B B & B %R B HERARS%RZTEI/EL fH3x -
LA A E R U A 20,0008 705 EIR o msafEe T2
ST FRENRS SR o

B _EAREERAN - ANER BN A B At 8l B LA IR K AR
MEBIMEANRELE
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For the purpose of providing compensation to certain senior
management and employees (the “Relevant Employees”) of the Acquired
Group and those who have made past contribution to the Acquired
Group (the “"Other Relevant Officers”) for their past contribution to

the development of the Acquired Group and/or as an incentive for

their future performance, pursuant to the board resolutions of STIC
passed on 24 June 2007, STIC allotted and issued, an aggregate of
126,114,814 shares of HK$0.1 each for an aggregate subscription price of
HK$12,611,481 (equivalent to RMB12,244,000) to the Relevant Employees
and the Other Relevant Officers. Relevant Employees have agreed with
Hsu You Yuan, Tan Wenhua and Chiao Ping-hai (the “Relevant Directors”),
and the Relevant Directors have undertaken with one another, that the
Relevant Directors are entitled to buy back such shares from the Relevant
Employees at subscription cost if the Relevant Employees cease to be
employed for reasons other than becoming incapacitated by work-
inflicted injury which would prevent them from performing their duties,
or dying before the end of the relevant lock-up period (the “Return
Condition”).

Out of the total allotted and issued shares of 126,114,814 shares,
116,961,911 shares are subject to the Return Condition. Accordingly, at
the end of each year end, the Acquired Group is required to estimate the
number of shares which will continue to be held by the original Relevant
Employees at the end of the relevant lock-up period and recognise the
value of such shares over the subscription cost as an employee expense
on a straight-line basis over the relevant lock-up period. Employee
expenses as a result of the allotment of such shares subject to the Return
Condition to the Relevant Employees will be approximately RMB17.0
million, RMB9.0 million, RMB4.8 million and RMB1.9 million for each of
the financial years ending 31 December 2008, 2009, 2010 and 2011,

respectively, assuming there is no termination of the Relevant Employees’

employment before the end of the relevant vesting period. In respect of
those shares which are not subject to the Return Condition, the value of
such shares over the subscription cost was recognised as an employee
expense on the allotment date.

On 26 June 2007, the Company acquired the entire interest of the
Acquired Group. As shareholders of the Acquired Group, the Relevant
Employees and the Other Relevant Officers were entitled to and did
subscribe for 114,973 shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company for an

aggregate consideration of HK$12,611,481 (equivalent to RMB12,244,000).

The Return Condition remains applicable to those Relevant Employees
to the effect that if the Relevant Employees cease to be employed for
reasons other than becoming incapacitated by work-inflicted injury
which would prevent them from performing their duties or dying before
the end of the relevant lock-up period, the Relevant Directors are entitled
to buy back those shares which remain subject to the lock-up period
from the Relevant Employees, provided that in the event that a Relevant
Employee ceases to be employed within one year after the Listing Date,
the Relevant Directors shall not be entitled to buy back the relevant
shares until the first anniversary of the Listing Date.

AREEEEEE TR REREAEBREE([BHE
8RBT ERHKEEEEDERE ([EittaEH
BABE])  RESEAHWKEEEERELDN
BELRSEAEBBRRBENSEEMIRGEE - R
BSTICR =TS+ FANA T HABANESES R
HE O STICAAREE 126114818 T(HERAR
#512,044,0007T ) B2 8% 2 3176 $£126,114,814 08 B X
BB LRGN FTEBREE MEME S R
8 - BHEBE RN EXERETE(AH
Ex))AE BEHESCRUAR  HMEBES
EIEZE(ATERERITERE AR BHERE
B4 SR B RIBRSN) - BEESEEARE
RAMAREEBRZ SR, ([FEEGED -

Bt e REBEITRMAE1261148140% « H
116,961,911 RZ S IRMEFAIR - FL - REFEL
REF - WIEEEAGRT RN E AR E SRS EE
HRBEBEHEEERBORNEE - WARKERE
AREEHARRRMEEBEREN N B RES
X - BEEEHEENEWREBEITERELLE
T HE_TT)N\FE —TTNF - —T-TF
EZT——F+-A=1+—RHBUEVBFESF B
L2 S X5 E GREPRAAR M T 5 B fE B M 512X
MiE B R 2 BIK A AR17,0000007T « AR
9,000,0007T * A R #4,800,0007T K& A & % 1,900,000
JC o MAETNXBERIGHMRARGOME - ZEH
BRRENANBROEBEERNEREBHERAEER
32 °

R-ZETEFNA-+H  ARAFRERKES
ErEEEs - (EAMKIEEEMLE - BRIEE
REMEAASREEAEALRE126114818 T
(HHER ARME12,244,0007T) R 114,973 &R E
BONVBTTHA AR © M LilE S CREMERER
7 BEGKHNDEAREBREEES - WERAREETH
ZE(TMEEEAIGRERBITERE BB
EHTENENNBERES)  BREEHFRANA
BE B BRI ZSRARNEE NN - BIRREM
EHEEER EMBESE —FATHETE  BHES
T BB — A EEmAT TSR R G, -
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Total employee expenses as a result of the allotment of the employee #H
shares (including those shares with and without the Return Condition) are
RMB10,054,000 (2006: RMB nil) for the year ended 31 December 2007. (==

(@) The terms and conditions of the shares granted to the Relevant

Employees are as follows:

KRB BRE GO -

(a) BTHREENENGS

Number of shares allotted

TRF: ARETT) -

E_TRLFEF+_A=+—HILFE  FAE%EE
B mELRE B M85 A AR10054,0007T
EERGLBIEHE &

N AIFIAT

Date of grant and issued Lock-up conditions
REBH BERBETROBE FERGT
24 June 2007 26,657 1 December 2008
—ETEFSAZF+TEA —=ENF+—A—A
24 June 2007 26,657 1 December 2009
—ERRAFRASTIA —ETENFFT-A—H
24 June 2007 26,657 1 December 2010
—EE+FARATTA —E—ZTF+—-F—H
24 June 2007 26,658 1 December 2011

—ERRAFRA-TIA

—T—F+=A—H

(b)

There was no change in the number of shares allotted and issued
from the date of grant to 31 December 2007.

Fair value of shares and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for shares allotted and
issued is measured by reference to the fair value of shares granted.
The estimate of the fair values of the shares granted during the
year ended 31 December 2007 is measured at the grant date using
the price to earnings multiples valuation method. The valuation is
derived from applying (i) an expected price to earnings multiple
of a group of listed companies operating in comparable business,
adjusted for the uniqueness of the subject being valued; and (i) the
net profit, excluding non-operating income and expenses, of the
Acquired Group with appropriate adjustments.

Fair value of shares and assumptions

RO ATFER R

Fair value at measurement date
REtE BB RATE

Expected price to earnings multiple
TRHm AR

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited F5 Y 88RIERBR A A

(b)

BEREEE_ZTT+F+_A=+—8H "
fio 2 Ko B ATAR A 0 B B S A -

BRAD B 2 B R RER
VAR 3 J B AT AR 1 [0 SR P AR B ) X T ME
TRZ2BRELBROO DX FEMAE - REE
“ETHF+ A=t HIEFEREBRS
MEETAFE - RE L B R Am R R
BEFE - (HEDERBOERN BLLEEKR
BREEN—A LT RARNERTERE (K7
PREERRASNBRERELFE) © &)
%&H&ﬁﬁ‘igi‘“ﬂéﬁEﬂ”fﬁﬁ%@ﬂ(?\@%#%&‘
BUWA KRS PTG HI4E

RMB57.50 million
AR #57,500,0007T
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(b)

(a)

(b)

Fair value of shares and assumptions (Continued)
The price to earnings multiple is determined with reference to
comparable listed companies, after discounting for marketability to

reflect illiquidity in nature at the grant date.

Certain shares were granted under a service condition. This
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date fair
value measurement of the services received. There were no market
conditions associated with the share grants.

(b) BRHBAFERERRE)

BRETELE EHAT - LI0HRBNE
B RS B A M T S M AT
BEE -

ET RO THRIRFB G RE o IR AL R
AFFERE L A AEGRREH A FE - KT
BRI BRI S 6 AE -

The Group (a) A~&EH
Details of the movements in capital and reserves of the Group are REBERRFEEDHFFHRENE -
set out on page /1.
The Company (b) ARAF
Share Share  Accumulated
capital premium loss Total
(&N RiDEE RitEE &5t
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Bier ARBTT ARETT ARETT AREEFTT
At 1 January 2007 R-ZT+F—H—H = - - -
Loss for the year RNEFZEE - - (2/405) (2,405)
Arising from the HEHEERIRAR
Reorganisation 27(h) 97 143,849 - 143,946
Acquisition of Wik D SRR R s
minority interests 27(i) 33 60,857 - 60,890
Issue of new shares BITERR D 27() 149 162,856 - 163,005
At 31 December 2007 RZZTLF+=A=+—H 279 367,562 (2/405) 365436
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27. Paid-in/issued capital continued) 27. R BRITRE®

(c) Authorised and issued share capital () EERBEBITRA
The Company
PN
2007
—ZE2tF
No. of shares
BABE
Authorised: SETE ¢
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREEC.I B ITH LB 3,800,000 HK$380
380787
Equivalent to: HEERN RMB368

AR#¥368TT

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: BRETRETERR

At 7 March R=A+A
Arising from the Reorganisation H B EE R (H5E27(h)

(note 27(h)) 999,999
Acquisition of minority interests Wi D SRR R A 2 (P 527 (7))

(note 27(i)) 343,708
Issue of new shares (note 27(j)) BATEAR A (P 3E27()) 1,530,625
At 31 December W+=-—A=+—H” 2,874,333
The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 7 March RAARIR—ZEZEELF=AtLtARHAEHST
2007 with an authorised share capital of 3,800,000 shares of HK$0.1 AL - A TE AR AN 43,800,000 % B AR EI (B 0.1
each. One share of HK$0.1 was issued nil paid and allotted to PEITHIARD o 1BREE0 AT 2 BRID AR BAR
Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited and was transferred to the R 81T R B2 % T Codan Trust Company
controlling equity shareholder on the same day. (Cayman) Limited * YA R B #8558 T 1% ik i o

IRER ©

The holders of shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared RDFE AL EREBMARERZKRE - M
from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at FHERROEDZEERRAARAG —ZERE
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with o AL ERERNRARFMNEERE RS

regard to the Company’s residual assets. FER o
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(d)

(e)

()

(9)

(h)

Paid-in capital in the Group's consolidated balance sheet as at
31 December 2006 represents the aggregate amount of the
Company's controlling equity shareholder's paid-in capital of the

PRC incorporated companies comprising the Group.

The issued capital in the Group’s consolidated balance sheet as at
31 December 2007 represents the issued capital of the Company
comprising 2,874,333 shares of HK$0.1 each (equivalent to
RMB279,000).

By a resolution passed at a meeting of the board of directors of
Huachang on 28 March 2006, Huachang's registered capital was
increased from RMB6,612,000 to RMB11,000,000 by capitalising the
general reserve fund and retained earnings in an aggregate amount
of RMB4,388,000. Accordingly, the Company’s share of the nominal
value of the paid-in capital of Huachang increased by RMB3,072,000.

Pursuant to written resolutions of the board of directors of
Tayaneng passed on 9 March 2007, Tayaneng acquired equity
interests of 75%, 70%, 74.17% and 75% in Yanguang, Huachang,
Huari and Xinri respectively for a consideration of RMB74,782,000
and became the holding company of Yangguang, Huachang, Huari
and Xinri.

Pursuant to written resolutions of the board of directors of
Tayaneng passed on 7 May 2007, a shareholder’s loan of
US$10,000,000 (equivalent to RMB77,160,000) was capitalised by
Tayaneng by the allotment and issue of 9,999 shares of US$1 each
in Tayaneng, credited as fully paid, to the shareholders.

Pursuant to written resolutions of the board of directors of the
Company passed on 8 May 2007, the Company obtained the entire
equity interest in Tayaneng from the then shareholder of Tayaneng
by issuing 999,999 shares of HK$0.1 each (equivalent to RMB97,000)
and credited the nil paid share held by Mr. Tan Wen Hua referred
to in note 27(g) as fully paid. The difference between the net asset
value of Tayaneng and its subsidiaries acquired and the nominal
value of the shares of the Company issued of RMB143,849,000 was

credited to the share premium account.

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

RAKE —ZTRF+_A=t—HZEFA
BERBRA - BRERAEEDBEMAL
BHERAEE 2 AER » ARAEREERZ
R AR -

RAEE-_ZTT+F+-_A=1+—HZEA
BEABERA  BRIBRAEAQRZEEH
TTHEA - 8352874333 FIREE0I BT Z
f&1n (FEFN AR 279,0007T) °

—EEXRFE=A=-+NR BMNEEES
REZLBRARAER  BZEEBARYK
4,388,0007T 2 — M H & RIRE BT E AL -
LR/ ZE B st & A A R%6,612,0007T 3%
= AEB11,0000007T © FE © ARA A Fr#E
SRINEE B 2 R IRANE EIE A R 53,072,000
=

n
=3
=

BiETayanengEE @R _ZTZTLtF=A 1
HBEMERARZS  Tayaneng AREBAR
74,782,000 7T 5 Bl Yo B 88 MM B~ 8RN 2E
g -~ SRINZEE B RS B AR #ET5% - 70%
74.17% 8% 75% + WRKBIRMEHE - SRINES -
SN EE B AR M B AR A ] o

BiETayanengEEER TS EFHAEH
BREMEERZEZR © Tayaneng i 1B M IR E AL
B [ B5979,999 08 AR E (B 1 3£ T A BRPIE K
R - BA#510,000000FK T (HHER AR
77,160,0007T) KRR EZIB T E AR ©

BEARNRESEN T LtFRANRR
BOEERER - AQAIBEBEI79999990%
BREE. B A A/ (BB FE R AR #E97,000
TL)  AREXESLEFEIRABBRIA
BR 31 R R B 10 (Bl i B 5 27(g) BT )+ 1A
Tayaneng & i % 5 % HX Tayaneng & 2B A 1 -
Tayaneng & L Fff B A & AT UK B ) & 22 5 (B B
RATIBEITROMNEBELEZTE  BARK
143,849,0007T * ERRIMABIRR AR o
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(1)

Pursuant to written resolutions of the board of directors of the
Company passed on 26 June 2007, the Company acquired the
minority interests in the subsidiaries of Tayaneng by issuing 343,708
shares of HK$0.1 each (equivalent to RMB33,000). The difference
between the net asset value of minority interests acquired

and the nominal value of the shares of the Company issued of
RMB60,857,000 was credited to the share premium account.

Accordingly, the allocation of the profit or loss for the year
attributable to minority interests presented on the face of the
consolidated income statement is for the period from 1 January
2007 up to the date of acquisition of the minority interests.

Pursuant to written resolutions of the board of directors of the
Company passed on 26 June 2007, the Company allotted and
issued an aggregate of 1,530,625 shares of HKS$0.1 each to the

then shareholders of the Acquired Group which subscribed for

the Company's shares at a cash consideration of HK$ 167,895,000
(equivalent to RMB163,005,000), of which RMB149,000 was credited
to issued capital and the balance of RMB162,856,000 was credited
to the share premium account.

The nature and purpose of reserves are set out below:

(a)

(b)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed by
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The share premium is
distributable.

General reserve fund

Pursuant to articles of association of the Company’s subsidiaries
incorporated in the PRC, these PRC subsidiaries are required to
transfer a minimum of 10% of their profits after taxation to the
general reserve fund until the balance of the fund is at least half
of the paid-in-capital. The amounts allocated to this reserve are
determined by the respective boards of directors with reference to
the minimum requirement.

For the entity concerned, the general reserve fund can be used to
make good previous years' losses, if any, and may be converted into
capital in proportion to the equity holders' existing equity holdings,
provided that the balance after such conversion is not less than
25% of the registered capital.

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited F5 Y 88RIERBR A A

(i

(1)

BEARREEER T LF AT+
BBAMEERAZR  AARBERELT
MW%W%%@@O%EWWﬁW%%AE
#33,0007T) + BR48 Tayaneng Mff B 22 A1 #0 &
%%%ﬁoﬁﬁ)%%%%ﬁ%éé%@ﬁ
AARBEHITRONEEBEZ =5  BARK
60,857,0007T * BRI = ERRH AR o

Hit - B=ZZ+F A HERBLIER

Rigm AH - D EERE G FE A EES
BROHE EREARERRNETR -

BEAAREEER -TBLESA-TX
BEBENEEREER  AARARKESE
BRI R AL KB AT A 1530625 IR AR E

BB ITHRD - MK EEENRESNRE
6M%%Wﬁﬂﬁ%%AEme%ww@
REARQ » B rp AR #5149,0007TET A

E%ﬁk$v%ﬁAE%6ﬂmmmnmhn
RERPALR -

fFEERIEE & B HESIT

(a)

(b)

RARE
BN EEENERAZASES QA
o [RDREN THIK °

SEFTR

m

—RfEEE

RIBA DB B ML B AR 2
BERMAN - bk F BB DR E R ERR
BAEZ 0B EE—RHFEES  BEZX
ERTT—FALERBRRE BBEESE
REB|HREERE  BEEDEEZRELE
tEl

REENELTNES - —REBSTHIERH
Mwi&%ﬁwwﬂ IRl iR =R A AR
REFRLE AR R AER - HIBRBERT
B EME ARH25% o
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(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(AAR®DIE)

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of shares allotted and
issued to employees of the Group over the subscription costs
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for

share-based payments in note 2(m)(iii).

Other reserve
The other reserve represents:

(i) The difference between Tayaneng's attributable share of
the nominal value of the paid-up capital of the subsidiaries
acquired over the consideration paid by Tayaneng to obtain
the equity interests in these subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the Reorganisation, Tayaneng acquired equity
interests of 75%, 70%, 74.17% and 75% in Yangguang,
Huachang, Huari and Xinri respectively on 9 March 2007.

The difference between Tayaneng’s attributable share of the
nominal value of these subsidiaries of RMB74,858,000 and the
consideration paid of RMB74,782,000 amounted to RMB76,000
and was credited to other reserve account.

(i) The difference between the net asset value of Tayaneng and
its subsidiaries acquired and the nominal value of the issued
share capital of Tayaneng.

The other reserve is non-distributable.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2007, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company was
RMB367,562,000. After the balance sheet date, the directors
proposed a final dividend of RMB5.2 cents (HK$5.8 cents) per
ordinary share amounting to RMB87,920,000 (HK$98,022,000). This
dividend has not been recognised of a liability at the balance sheet
date.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,

so that is can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

()

(d)

(e)

CENE
ERFBEREERETTAKERENRN
B B M S8 PR B 2(m) i) P 8 7 B PR £
S B AT IR T R R BB AN 2 8K -
Hitbf#

Hi##TE

Tayaneng A FTUKFE BB A Bl BB &
R{DRE 2 EERE HTayaneng SR ER I
MEAB ZREMNZREERE -

RIZFEMH  Tayaneng —EZ+F = A
T AUEESB MBS - SRMES - SN EE
A RS8N B D BI75% * 70% ~ 74.17% K%

75%AX#E  Tayaneng P bt 35 I B A &) &
HEENFE R AR 74,8580007T * B
T2 REBART74,782,0007T * =& Z
EZHEAARMET60007T © EEF AHAM
AR -

(i)  JEHXTayaneng R H I B R 7K & EFE
EATayaneng B B/ TIRANHEIE 2 =58 ©

HiFEE AT A DR

At D RS
RZZEEEF+_A=+—H AI#tHk
FTARAAERRENBEELERARYE
367,562,0007C ° #H H 2% - EFEBRNE
IR E BRI ERIR B A RIE5 25 (5.8711L) + ARE
# AR #687,920,0007T (98,022,000/ 7T ) ° A
HH HMAKKREERREE-

EvEE

AEEERESHEERN - RERBERABRK
FEEEMRRRBHER  ZaERAREE
E o RBREAEHEFELSE  EBERK
RiefEH®R - SEMERSE AR -
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(f) Capital management (Continued)
At 31 December 2007, the Group has short-term bank loans
amounting to RMB127,000,000 (2006: RMB40,000,0000) which are
repayable within one year and a municipal government loan of
RMB2,890,000 (2006: RMB2,785,000) which will be fully repaid by
2020. The gearing ratio, representing the ratio of total borrowings
to the total share capital and reserves of the Group was 20.5% at
31 December 2007 (2006: 22.7%). The Group had cash and bank
deposits as at 31 December 2007 amounting to RMB349,098,000
(2006: RMB52,212,000).

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes
in economic conditions.

On 26 June 2007, the Company acquired the entire equity interests in the
Acquired Group for a cash consideration of HK$167,895,000 (equivalent
to RMB163,005,000). The fair value of the Acquired Group's net assets

at the date that the Company obtained control on 26 June 2007 was
RMB237,776,000.

The Acquired Group contributed aggregate revenue of RMB158,585,000
and aggregate net profit of RMB38,246,000 during the period from 26
June 2007 to 31 December 2007. The aggregate revenue and net profit
of the Acquired Group as if the acquisition for the business combination
effected during the year ended 31 December 2007 had been at the
beginning of the year are RMB363,784,000 and RMB101,359,000
respectively.

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited B3 X aEIRIZRER AT

n EEE®
R-BELF+-_A=+—0  AEENE
HERITE FRE A R#127,000,0007T (ZEE N
& AR ¥4000000007T) * AR —FRNE
B AEENTBITERR AR 2,890,0007T
(ZZFZTRF : AR¥27850007T) @ #§HR =
ToTERHEE  c ABELXRAEREEER
NASENRRARFERHERZLE  RZF
TLF+_A=Z+—H8 R E05%(=F
TRE 1 27%) c RZEZEHF+=—A=+—
H A5EEFBARSREBITFERARKE
349,098,0007T ( ZZTZRF : ARME52,212,000
TT) °

AEBRETHRHATIAALEH &
BIEEKT A AR R E B RE R - SR
TS AR 12 6 0 B RIR IS A P 7
REFE  YREEAERERTAEEA
e -

RZZFZELFANAZTAB ARFIURERE
167,895,000/ 7T (#H 5 7 A R #5163,005,000 7T ) Y2 B
WREEE 2 BRE - RARIRZTZLFA
ZHANBESEFEER  WBESEZEEFE
NFE B AR237,7760007T °

—EEFEFANA T AHEZZEZELFE T A
=+—BHHE HRESENRAEREEAAR
#5158,585,0007T AL B B4R RE & A R 838,246,000
TL o HNEEE 2 WA RGRBES B AARE
363,784,000 & A R #5101,359,0007C B ZE ==
THFE+ A=+ BHUEFEEE ZEBAMKRE
REVIBFIE) °
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The acquisition has the following effect on the Group's assets and ZIEWEHRREER ST E A +RAZE
liabilities on 26 June 2007: ENBBEENTHE
Carrying Fair value
amount adjustment Fair value
BRMEE AV ERE AFEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARETT ARETTT

Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB REE

(note 14(a)) (Bi=E14(2)) 25,127 - 25,127
Goodwiill [GES 3,539 (3,539) =
Inventories FE 60,094 18,005 78,099
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 BR 7k I Eo b fE W IR 157,503 - 157,503
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESZEEY 68,479 - 68,479
Short-term bank loan SHISRITE R (15,000) = (15,000)
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 BRI Efth FE 3R (64,723) - (64,723)
Current tax payable (note 23(a)) FEAT BNEAT TH (K 5£23(a)) (8,362) - (8,362)
Deferred tax liability (note 23(b)) IRIEFIE B & (M sE23(b)) - (3,347) (3,347)
Net assets acquired W BE & EFE 226,657 11,119 237,776
Cash consideration paid SRR E (163,005)
Gain on acquisition (note 5) W Wz (PR EES) 74,771
Analysis of the net cash outflow of BBHEBEEZRER

cash and cash equivalents BEeZEEYREREFZEDIN

in respect of the acquisition of

the Acquired Group
Cash consideration paid ERNEERE 163,005
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired & : FTUIEIR & KRS EEY) (68479)
Net cash outflow RemFE 94,526

The gain on acquisition mainly represents the changes in the fair value

of the Acquired Group during the period from 1 January 2007 to the

acquisition date of 26 June 2007. The Company had substantially

concluded and agreed on the terms and conditions of the acquisition

with the then shareholders of the Acquired Group as at 31 December

2006. Since the statutory approval from authorities of corresponding

jurisdictions was necessary for the acquisition to complete, the change in

fair value during the application process has therefore resulted in a gain

on acquisition.

Wil s T RERKBEEER _TTLF—A—H
ZWERH T FRA- T RNANEZATE
EE) o ARAENR-TBRF+-A=+—HHK
WIESEEE R ZBIR - KRECEE RREWRE G
Rl o R B ZAER $Hﬁ7xﬁ%l§n£g%?ﬁz/ﬁ
ERET K - R BABERRED 2 A FEED
U Y o
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During the year, transactions with the following parties are considered as

related party transactions:

Name of party Relationship

BHER A

Tan Wen Hua Executive director of the Group
B E AEBZHTES

Zhao Xiu Qin Spouse of Tan Wen Hua
HHE B 2 BB

Jinzhou Changhua Carbon Production
Co,, Ltd. ("Changhua”)
BMEEREHRBRAR([HINEE])

Wafer Works Corp. Group ("WWX")
ERMBROERRR ( [&&FR] )

Helitek International Company Limited (“Helitek”)

EMBEBRERAR ( DER] )

Jinzhou Huarong Property Management
Co,, Ltd. ("Huarong”)
g ERARAR(HMNER])

Jinzhou Huaxin Silicon Material Trading
Department (“Huaxin”)

SN EE R MRS & BB (T 8N R 1)

Jinzhou Huihua Carbon Production
Co,, Ltd. ("Huihua")
WNEERERRER AR ([ SRMNEE])

Jinzhou Huihua Photovoltaic Technology
Co,, Ltd. ("HCPV")
FRMNEE S KRB R AR ([8RMEE KK])

Youhua

SBMNEZEFTBEIRBR AR ( [81hEE] )

Jinzhou Youxin Electronic Materials Co., Ltd. (“Youxin”)
wMEBEFMEAERAR ( [8MNEE] )

Wafer Works (Shanghai) Corp. (“Wafer Works (Shanghai)”)
PEERYMHBERAR ([ LE&&] )

Space Energy Corporation (“SEC")
FHERRA S ([ THEERRA S )

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited F5 Y 88RIERBR A A

Significantly influenced by Tan Wen Hua
SRNEEAYE

Equity shareholder of the Group
REBRERRE

Subsidiary of Wafer Works Corp. Group
& EEHERG AR ARME AR

Controlled by Tan Wen Hua

F RE S

Controlled by Tan Wen Hua
P R S EE A )

Controlled by Tan Wen Hua
Pl S

Controlled by Tan Wen Hua
2

Same key management as the Group before it became
a subsidiary of the Group

RAALENBARZA - HE2EIREABEALEERR

Controlled by Zhao Xiu Qin
F Sl

Subsidiary of Wafer Works Corp. Group
BB ARARMB AR

Equity shareholder of the Group
REEEEARR

FA - THNALZRGERBEEIRS
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Particulars of significant transactions between the Group and the above

related parties during the year are as follows:

(a) Recurring transactions

REE - AEFE PSS 2REERX5F BN

(a) EEMERZ

The Group
rEE
2006
—EER \fﬁ
RMB'000
ARETFTT
Sales of goods to: HEEMT :
- SEC —FHiERKA g1t 58,887
— Wafer Works Corp. Group — & -
— Wafer Works (Shanghai) - 56 % -
Provision of services to: RIERET -
- SEC —FHERKX S -
— Wafer Works Corp. Group —EmiHEROBR A =
— Wafer Works (Shanghai) —+L56% -
— Youhua — RN 343
59,230
Purchases of goods from: TS FEEER
- Changhua A =E= 1,205
— Huihua — SR pE 7,697
—SEC —FHERIKA g 43,992
— Youhua — BN EE 47,732
— Youxin — SR ES 21,751
— Wafer Works Corp. Group —EmiH -
— Wafer Works (Shanghai) —LBe& -
~ Helitek — & -
Provision of services by Youhua $RINEZEIR AR TS -
Provision of electricity and SR ZELRIRHOKE
water by Huarong 766
123,143

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the above
related party transactions were conducted on normal commercial
terms and were priced with reference to prevailing market prices,
and in the ordinary course of business.

124

RARIZEERABLMBEARG IR —MR
¥ BRERIREEEERRE
fTMEMmEIE -
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(b) Non-recurring transactions

(b) FEEMRS

The Group
rEE
2006
ZZTRF
RMB'000
ARETFTT
Sale of machinery and equipment to A EEE S EHEE N R
Wafer Works (Shanghai) -
Purchase of motor vehicles from mESBMNEEREE R
Youhua 260

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the above
related party transactions were conducted on normal commercial
terms and were with reference to prevailing market prices, and in

the ordinary course of business.

(c) Amounts due from related parties

ARRZEERR/EABBEHTZZ TN R
EBBRPIZETHEGRTET  L2ER
TMEMRIE °

() EBWEELFEA

The Group
rER
2006
ZETRF
RMB'000
ARETFT
Trade 25

— Changhua i A=F =
- SEC —FHEERKA gt 9,660
— Wafer Works Corp. Group — &A@ _
— Wafer Works (Shanghai) —L5a&% -
- Youhua — SR EE 120
9,780

Non-trade FEH
— Wafer Works (Shanghai) —L5a&% -
9,780

Amounts due from related parties are unsecured, interest free and
are expected to be recovered within one year.

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited [585RIERBR A

FENWBEE TT 2 R R - 8 RIEHT]
R—FRkm -
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(d)

(e)

Amounts due to related parties

d) ENEELIFRER

The Group
rER
2006
ZZTRF
RMB'000
ARKEFTT
Trade g5

— Changhua — RN B 484
- SEC —FHERKRA gt 7,269
— Wafer Works Corp. Group — A mEE _
— Wafer Works (Shanghai) - L& & -
- Youhua — R INREE 18,780
- Youxin — B NIAE -
26,533

Non-trade IFEH
- HCPV —3RINEE B AR 20,000
46,533

Amounts due to related parties are unsecured, interest free and
expected to be settled within one year.

Amount due to a director

o

FET BEE 5 SR R - 2B RIRH AR

—FRER

(e) BN—BEZZFA

The Group
AEE
2006
—EERF
RMB'000
ARKETTT
Tan Wen Hua BYEE 50

The amount due to a director was unsecured, interest-free and

expected to be settled within one year.

BN —RERZFBAERR - 28 MR

AR—FREE -
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(f) Guarantees fH TR
The Group
rEE
2006
ZETRF
RMB'000
ARETFT
Financial guarantee granted to ERELSRHNHEER
arelated party:
Issuance of a guarantee in favour of BEERMNEER L 2 RITER
a bank in respect of a bank loan LASRIT RS e A FTHHH 2 #54R
granted to Youhua 6,000
Maximum liability of the Company {ERETAARZE/ELR :
under the guarantee:
At beginning of year FH) -
Atend of year FR 6,000
(g) Key management personnel emoluments () TEEEAEHMN

Key management personnel receive compensation in the form

of salaries, housing and other allowances, benefits in kind,
discretionary bonuses and retirement scheme contributions.
Details of key management personnel emoluments are disclosed
in notes 11 and 12. Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” as
disclosed in note 7(b).

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited 5 XEERIZERER A

FEEBABUT S  FREEEMERN B
A - RIS TEAT BB IREH B e 77 Uk
Bife o EZEEAB MR RI123
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Capital commitments that relate to purchases of property, plant and
equipment outstanding at of the balance sheet date not provided for in
the financial statements were as follows:

REEH  BABEYE  BE &&EBDAREY
TR A 2 BEAEENT ¢

The Group
REE

2006
—ERTRFE
RMB'000
ARETTT
Authorised and contracted for EREWERTH 6,505
Authorised but not contracted for EREERETL "

At 31 December 2007, the total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

RIZBZLF+_A=+—8H  RETABEIL
EHE  ARASEENZ&EEEMNFERN
T

The Group
REE
2006
ZETRF
RMB'000
ARETFT

Within 1 year 1A
After 1 year but within 5 years 1 BESER
After 5 years 5%

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties held under
operating leases as at 31 December 2007. The leases typically run for an
initial period of 2 to 20 years, with an option to renew the lease upon
expiry when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes

contingent rentals.

RZTELFF+_A=+—H ' "5EAREZE
REHEMFMENEATAA - RERE—RINF 5
Ho_Z—+F  MEEEENHEERE  AIRE
FEE RGN EBREY - RSHEWTEEK
AME o
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Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the
normal course of the Group's business. These risks are limited by the
Group's financial management policies and practices described below.

(@) Creditrisk
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other receivables. Cash and cash
equivalents are normally placed at financial institutions that have
sound credit rating and the Group considers the credit risk to be

insignificant.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on customers on a case-by-case basis.
As at 31 December 2007, the Group has a certain concentration
of credit risk as 13% (2006: 11%) of the total trade and other
receivables was due from the Group's largest customer and 30%

(2006: 49%) was due from the five largest customers of the Group.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the consolidated balance sheet.
Except as disclosed in note 30(f), the Group does not provide any

other guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk.

(b) Liquidity risk
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short

and longer term.
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REBPAENER  REE - MXREBRER
BAKENAEEY - SLER X B AEE T A
MBERBR R ERARS o

@@ FEER
FEBNEERREIERERS RALEE
PN E SRR A WGRIR - R R
REeEEY  REIRNAEERREEEE
= B A RIFEEF RS RIS o

HEWE SRR R EMEYRGRIE  AfEE
BRFHEEEHEEMRR - R=ZTZTLHF
TZA=+—R AEEEETRERFER
MEFRRRE - BAEWRE SRR & E M E
WERTER)13%( ZFTNF - 11%) REANEH
BARBPHIRGR + 30%( ZFZTIRF : 49%) 8l
RAAEEBRAREFHRK -

RANGEERRAGEEEREBRTEEAM
BEEMNRESHE - RRKE300MRES

S - REE W BB EERER - T SAKE
ﬁEKW*“J—LKM

(b) RENERERR
AEBOBRETEHERE HANERRBE
SMFTK - UREREBEFHRSHEERME
AEREERESNAREERE  RAER
REHNRBESTEK -
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33. Financial instruments (continued) 33. €@ T B

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REERBSE (&)
The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at TRANAREBRAARNEE BB AR
the balance sheet date of the Group’s and the Company’s financial 2B TEHFR  FRMBAGEIFAEH
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows RKFRFERERAEERARFHFER
and the earliest date the Group and the Company can be required A e R A -
to pay.
The Group
458
2007 2006
TBEtE 550k
Total Morethan  Morethan Tota Moethan ~ Morethan
contractual Within ~ 1yearbut  2yearshut contractual Within — Tyearbut  2yearshut
TR ST S A UEAE  Gying wdisconted—— Tyearor— lessthen— lessthan— Morethan
amount  cashflow  ondemand 2years 5 years 5 years amont — cashfow ondemand 2years 5years Syears
TORAR -ShakE BE-FE RECER TOKE -ERdEE  BE-EE  RACEE
BEE ACiBEE BARIE  ONSE  JREE  EEEE [T R S S it
RMB'000  RMB'0C0  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMBO00  RMB'000 B 00 AMBO00 AMBOO0 RMBOOD RMBOOD RABOO0
\iap NSNS SR SN A ARBT  ARMTR  ARBTR ARETT ARETT ARETR
Shorttem bank oans BERER 127000 [131428)  (131,428) - 00 @) e - - -
Monicpel qovemmentloan~~ FHIFER 280 (4612) - (922) 278 (4612) - - o) (o)
Tadeandotherpayebleand  ERESEHR
accued expenses EHERENR
B 144068 (144,068)  (144,008) 08133 (68133) (68,33) = - -
Amountdue toreleted partes  [EFEEA 3R - - - 2000 (0000)  (20000) - - -
Amountdue toa director Ef-%22758 - - - %0 (50) (50) - - -
73958 (280108)  (27549) (922) 13098 (135489)  (130877) = (466) (414)
The Company
AN
2007
—BELF
Total
contractual Within
undiscounted 1 year or
Carrying cash flow on demand
amount BRARFTR —FRoiEE
BREE REeRERE EHARZH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET R ARET R
Other payables H At AR08 33,837 (33,837) (33,837)

Amount due to a subsidiary

e —ZK P A R FRIR

15,774

49,611

(15,774)

(49,611)

(15,774)

(49,611)




33. Financial instruments (ontinued) 33. @M T B

(c) Interest rate risk (0 FIZERk
(i) Effective interest rates and repricing analysis () EBRFIEREBIEEBSNT
The following table details interest rate profile of the Group’s TR AEEREE B EEFENF
net borrowings at the balance sheet date. R o
The Group

rEE
2007 2006
—EELF ZETRF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate RMB’000 rate RMB'000
ERfE AR¥Tx BREAME  AR¥ETT

Variable rate borrowings ZEEE
Short-term secured bank loans 5B EARIRITE R 5 127,000 6.12 10,000
Short-term unsecured bank loans %2 BEIKIRIRTTE TR - 7.96 30,000
127,000 40,000
Fixed rate borrowing EEBE
Municipal government loan MBNER 7.44 2,785
Total borrowings BEE®E5E 129,890 42,785
Net fixed rate borrowings EEEEFEE
as a percentage of FE BT
total net borrowings Aot 6.5%
(i) Sensitivity analysis i) BREST
At 31 December 2007, it is estimated that a general increase/ RZZET+F+ZA=+—H ' H5tE
decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other BBFE EHREI100EES - MATE
variables held constant, would decrease/increase the Group’s Hhaf @A ZEFTE - REBRBRT
profit after tax and retained earnings by approximately BFERREBIEE TR, ALY
RMB1,270,000 (2006: RMB400,000). ARHE12700007L( ZBTREF « ARK

400,0007T) °
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(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) (c)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the balance
sheet date and had been applied to the exposure to interest
rate risk for both derivative and non-derivative financial
instruments in existence at that date. The 100 basis point
increase or decrease represents change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual balance sheet date. The

analysis has been performed on the same basis for 2006.

(d) Foreign currency risk (d)
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases that are denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the operations to which they relate. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily USS$ and JPY. The
directors do not expect any significant impact from the exchange
rates movement since the Group uses the foreign currencies
collected from customers to settle the amount due to suppliers.
In addition, the directors ensure that the net exposure is kept to
an acceptable level by buying or selling US$ and JPY at spot rates

where necessary to address short-term imbalances.

== B (5)

(i) BEEEST(E)
A ESRESITER RS RSB H4
REER - WILFXEFHEANERT
FENTERIETESR T A £ 2 1001H
ERMEREE NMEATELE BRNF X
#E)  —TTRNFHNLMEARRNE
HEEAT o

SN LB

AREBASNINEEL R - TRREEZE
SHERIAIBE B’ DA 2 BT IHE AR
B-ELANTRARZEETER/RZTIRA
cBEUV T AHERZS e HAKEEEX
EREAFE ARAKEERAEFWKE
ZONERE RS AR » 1o EARE
i BERAEZRIPEREAREHET
K AE - ARERFERRESNRAEZKE

ep S P SSEIPS I
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(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

(i) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group's and the Company’s

exposure at the balance sheet date to currency risk arising

from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a

(d) SMERER(E)

) SMNEER
TRFAJNAREERARRREE B A
FERSNER - SNERREEEREE
B EAEEE R R NGB

currency other than the functional currency of the entity to BEmEE -
which they relate.
The Group
REME
2006
ZETRF
United
States Hong Kong
Dollars Dollars
‘000 ‘000
FET FHET
Trade and other receivables U E SRR N E A
FEM A 3,460 -
Pledged deposits BEEAFR 707 =
Cash and cash equivalents WENIRESEEBY 1,553 -
Trade and other payables JERE SRR EA
FERTFRIE (993) =
4,727 -
The Company
¥ NN
United
States
Dollars
‘000
FEr
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 BRIk K Eo b FE UL FR IR 255
Trade and other payables FERHE Z BRIk 2 EL b FE AT 3008 (210)
45
133

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited [5 X 85RIERER A



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf # 3R R i 5

(Expressed in Renminbi)

134

(AAR®IIE)

(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate change in the
Group's profit after tax and retained profits in response to
reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange rates
to which the Group has significant exposure at the balance
sheet date.

(d) SMERBR(E)

(ii)

HEEHT
TRERAREEREE AFAEAR
BEEXRFRELHBAEEE  MoAE
B Bt FIB R R I R0 05
B o

The Group
AEE
2006
ZTTRF
Increase/
decrease
Increase/ in profit
decrease after tax
in foreign and
exchange retained
rates profit
Btz
I R AR
A B FEE R
RMB'000
ARETT
Hong Kong Dollars I 10% =
United States Dollars ETT 10% 3,595

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that
the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the
balance sheet date and had been applied to the Group's
exposure to currency risk for all financial instruments in
existence at that date, and that all other variables, in particular

interest rates, remain constant.

The stated changes represent changes in foreign exchange
rates over the period until the next annual balance sheet date.
In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between
the Hong Kong Dollar and the United States Dollar would

be materially unaffected by any changes in movement in
value of the United States Dollar against other currencies. The
analysis has been performed on the same basis for 2006.

BURE DT T RR A E RSB N
HRZEEMET » WERANAEER
35@EWA%§@IE%Q%@$@

- BRTA E A A E R = (R Rl =A%)
iﬂ%?r\ o

Frtt S iR R E T —FE&E
AHRMERES) - it s - K&
TR EMEEHER BIRNEMES - T
BEAYEB LA THBIER - —
ZERFNDI AR EELELT -
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(e) Supply of raw materials risk
The Group's revenue depends significantly on its ability to obtain
sufficient raw materials which meet the Group's specifications. The
Group obtains most of its raw materials from a limited number of
suppliers. As a result, there is a risk that the Group will be unable
to secure a sufficient supply of raw materials to meet its planned
production output, which may have a material and adverse impact
on the revenue of the Group.

(f) Fair values
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December 2006 and 2007.

In determining the carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilities,

the Group makes assumptions of the effects of uncertain future events
on those assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet date. The Group's
estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience and
expectations of future events and are reviewed periodically. In addition to
assumptions and estimations of future events, judgements are also made
during the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.

(@) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of each asset, after taking into
account the estimated residual value. The Group reviews annually
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any. Both the
period and methods of depreciation are reviewed annually. The
depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.

(b) Impairment
In considering the impairment losses that may be required for
the Group's property, plant and equipment and construction
in progress, the recoverable amount of the asset needs to be
determined. The recoverable amount is the greater of the net
selling price and the value in use. It is difficult to precisely estimate
the net selling price because quoted market prices for these assets
may not be readily available. In determining the value in use,
expected cash flows generated by the asset are discounted to their
present values, which requires significant judgement relating to
items such as the level of sales volume, selling price and amount of
operating costs. The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation of the
recoverable amount, including estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of items such as sales
volume, selling prices and amount of operating costs.

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited [5&8RIERBR D A
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BEEERRZEMBZEEN - AEERE
FSE%ZE Z B IER ISR BB D R4 o ELE
i 78 5= B R BE R AR B 7T 2 R L (L FE LA FE A<
Hit8ES @ AIAEENKRATEEXEE
2

H =2FE
REZEERER =TT LFE T H=1T—
B AESRTANKESRELATEZ
FIRBEEAER °

EEES TEERABENRASER - AEBZS
BENRREGHNETARFEERBBNTE
EHTRR - AERERBEBENEHRINERREM
B FEEHEL T RRER - WE TR o BREARKRE
R RE RAGFSN  ARBIRA SRR ESF
o

@) % - BERRENERFH
WE - BERRBEZEREMGEER T
B AN S B EMT A8 F R
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ERAKENE BERRBAREZETRR
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NEZEMS LEFHRE - S BAEHERS
FOREE EEEEMEER - B AR
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(b) Impairment (Continued)
Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are assessed and
provided based on the directors’ regular review of ageing analyses
and evaluation of collectibility. A considerable level of judgement is
exercised by the directors when assessing the credit worthiness and
past collection history of each individual customer.

Any increase or decrease in the above impairment losses would
affect the net profit in future years.

(c) Valuation of inventories
Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs to completion
and selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of manufacturing
and selling products of similar nature. It could change significantly as
a result of changes in technique and competitor actions in response
to adverse industry cycles. Management reassess these estimates at
each balance sheet date.

Up to the date of issue of the financial statements, the HKICPA has issued
a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations which are
not yet effective for the accounting period beginning on 1 January 2007
and which have not been adopted in the financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and new interpretations is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
Group's results of operations and financial position.

In addition, the following development may result in new or amended
disclosures in the financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 - Presentation of financial statements
Amendments to HKAS 23 — Borrowing costs
HKFRS 8 — Operating segments

All of the above are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2009.

On 31 March 2008, the Company's shares were listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange following the completion of the public offer

and placing of 253,600,000 shares as described in the Prospectus of the
Company dated 17 March 2008.

(b) RUE (%)
REFRBEBRITREESTEREHERED
A X RJ U5 [ 72 2 A 14 2R A R4 R st IR
B BEEANGHSENTPHNEERE LB
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(0 FEZME
FEZAZHEFEDERAEREERH 2
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X o ZFEMFTERBA MR REERHE
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